
Office of the City Clerk 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

\!tbe <titp of jOOorgantohln 
Linda L. Little, CMC 

389 Spruce Street, Room 10 
Morgantown, West Virginia 26505 

(304) 284-7439 Fax: (304) 284-7525 
llittle@cityofmorgantown.org 

AMENDED AGENDA 
MORGANTOWN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 21,2014 

7:00 p.m. 

3. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting - October 7, 2014 

5. CORRESPONDENCE: 

Presentation by Terri Cutright Director of Main Street 

Presentation by Richard Lockhart from Casto & Harris 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE CREATION OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4 AND APPROVAL 
OF A PROJECT PLAN FOR WILLEY -SPRUCE-BROCKWAY 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT NO.1 AND ISSUANCE OF TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS. 

B. AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN ADDING A NEW 
ARTICLE 160 TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CREATING A 
MORGANTOWN HOUSING ADVISORY COMMISSION. 

C. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN (LESSOR) AND MERKOL, INC., (LESSEE) 
REGARDING RESTAURANT SPACE LOCATED AT THE MORGANTOWN 
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT. 

Page 1 of 132



D. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 925.03 OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN'S STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE 
BY SETTING FORTH THE RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
TO CUSTOMERS OF THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN. 

E. AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AMENDING 
SECTIONS 923.06 AND 923.13 OF ITS STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC 
SERVICES CODE, AS THE SAME APPLIES TO INDUSTRIAL WASTES 
DISCHARGED INTO THE SEWER SYSTEM AND ANCILLARY SERVICES 
REGARDING INDUSTRIAL WASTES. 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Consideration of APPROVAL of (SECOND READING) and (ADOPTION) of 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN ADDING A NEW 
ARTICLE 160 TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CREATING A 
MORGANTOWN HOUSING ADVISORY COMMISSION. (First Reading 
September 16, 2014)(October 7, 2014 postponed for amendments) 

B. Consideration of APPROVAL of (SECOND READING) and (ADOPTION) of 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN (LESSOR) AND MERKOL, INC., (LESSEE) 
REGARDING RESTAURANT SPACE LOCATED AT THE MORGANTOWN 
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT. (First Reading October 7, 2014) 

C. Consideration of APPROVAL of (SECOND READING) and (ADOPTION) of 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 925.03 OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN'S STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE 
BY SETTING FORTH THE RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
TO CUSTOMERS OF THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN.(First Reading October 7,2014) 

D. Consideration of APPROVAL of (SECOND READING) and (ADOPTION) of 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AMENDING 
SECTIONS 923.06 AND 923.13 OF ITS STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC 
SERVICES CODE, AS THE SAME APPLIES TO INDUSTRIAL WASTES 
DISCHARGED INTO THE SEWER SYSTEM AND ANCILLARY SERVICES 
REGARDING INDUSTRIAL WASTES. (First Reading October 7,2014) 

Page 2 of 132



E. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

8. PUBLIC PORTION WHICH SHALL BE SUBJECT TO RULES ESTABLISHED BY 
COUNCIL AND ADOPTED BY RESOLUTION 

9. SPECIAL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Consideration of APPROVAL of FIRST READING of AN ORDINANCE BY 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN IT AND THE WV DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS, FOR INSTALLATION OF 
A BICYCLE LANE ALONG NORTHBOUND U.S. 19(MONONGAHELA 
BOULEVARD), BETWEEN EIGHTH STREET AND EVANSDALE DRIVE. 

B. Consideration of APPROVAL of A RESOLUTION SUBMITTING A TIF 
APPLICATION TO CREATE AND ESTABLISH A REDEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT TO BE KNOWN AND DESIGNATED AS THE "CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4" (THE "TIF 
DISTRICT"). 

11. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. FY Annual Reports of Police & Fire Pension Funds 

2. Salt purchase for 2014 

12. REPORT FROM CITY CLERK 

13. REPORT FROM CITY ATTORNEY 

14. REPORT FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to West Virginia Code Section 6-9A-4(b)(9) of 
the West Virginia code to consider matters involving Council/client privileges. 

Page 3 of 132



16. ADJOURNMENT 

*If you need an accommodation contact us at (304) 284·7439* 

Page 4 of 132



REGULAR MEETING OCTOBER 7, 2014: The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City 
of Morgantown was held in the Council Chambers of City Hall on Tuesday, October 7, 2014 at 4:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: City Manager Jeff Mikorski, Assistant City Manager Glen Kelly, and City Attorney Steve 
Fanok, City Clerk Linda Little, Mayor Selin, Deputy Mayor Marti Shamberger and Council Members: 
Ron Bane, Wes Nugent, Mike Fike, and Nancy Ganz. (Bill Kawecki Absent) 

The Meeting was called to order by Mayor Selin. 

Mayor Selin explained that due to a meeting for the Free Flow Power hydropower project this 
evening at the Hilton Garden Inn at 7pm; so we have a time limitation this evening. 

Mayor Selin announced that Items C under Public Hearing Notice and Unfinished Business on 
the Agenda this evening be withdrawn until the next agenda per Councilor Kawecki's request to revamp 
Ordinance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: The minutes of the regular meeting of September 16, 2014, were 
approved as printed. 

CORRESPONDENCE: Mayor Selin read proclamations for Fire Prevention Week and General Aviation 
Appreciation Month. 

PUBLIC HEARING - AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 
13.40 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF ADDITIONAL TERRITORY THAT WAS ANNEXED INTO 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN BY ORDINANCE 14-18 BY AMENDING ARTICLE 1331 OF 
THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN SHOWN ON THE 
EXHIBIT HERETO ATTACHED AND DECLARED TO BE PART OF TillS ORDINANCE AS 
IF THE SAME WAS FULLY SET FORTH HEREIN. 

There being no appearances, Mayor Selin declared the Public Hearing closed. 

PUBLIC HEARING - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FY 2014-2015 ANNUAL BUDGET OF 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AS SHOWN IN THE REVISED BUDGET ATTACHED 
HERETO AND MADE PART OF THIS ORDINANCE AS THE SAME APPLIES TO THE 
GENERAL FUND. 

There being no appearances, Mayor Selin declared the Public Hearing closed. 

PUBLIC HEARING -AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN ADDING A NEW 
ARTICLE 160 TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CREATING A MORGANTOWN HOUSING 
ADVISORY COMMISSION. 

This Public Hearing was withdrawn per the Mayor. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 13.40 ACRES: 
The below entitled Ordinance was presented for second reading. 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 13.40 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS, OF ADDITIONAL TERRITORY THAT WAS ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF 

1 
Page 5 of 132



MORGANTOWN BY ORDINANCE 14-18 BY AMENDING ARTICLE 1331 OF THE PLANNING 
AND ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN SHOWN ON THE EXHIBIT HERETO 
ATTACHED AND DECLARED TO BE PART OF THIS ORDINANCE AS IF THE SAME WAS 
FULLY SET FORTH HEREIN. 

City Manager explained the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. After discussion, motion by 
Ganz, second by Shamberger, to adopt the above entitled Ordinance. Motion carried 6-0. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FY 2014-2015 GENERAL FUND BUDGET: The below 
entitled Ordinance was presented for second reading. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FY 2014-2015 ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN AS SHOWN IN THE REVISED BUDGET A TT ACHED HERETO AND MADE 
PART OF THIS ORDINANCE AS THE SAME APPLIES TO THE GENERAL FUND. 

City Manager noted that this is a modification of the budget. Motion by Bane, second by 
Nugent, to adopt the above entitled Ordinance. Motion carried 6-0. 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN ADDING A NEW ARTICLE 160 
TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE: The below entitled Ordinance was presented for second reading. 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN ADDING A NEW ARTICLE 160 TO 
ITS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CREATING A MORGANTOWN HOUSING ADVISORY 
COMMISSION. This Ordinance was withdrawn per the Mayor. 

Councilor Bane mentioned concern on the procedure of taking this Ordinance off the Agenda this 
way. He noted that Council has never done this before. Councilor Nugent commented that there is a 
process to follow. City Manager explained that Councilor Kawecki had some minor modifications to 
make and requested that it be held up until the next Regular Council meeting. Councilor Nugent moved 
to postpone Public Hearing C and Unfinished Business C on the agenda to consider amendments and 
adoption of Article 169 at the next Regular Meeting. Second by Bane. After discussion, motion carried 6-
O. 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS: The City Clerk reminded Council of the openings pending on 
various Boards. 

PUBLIC PORTION: 

Mayor Selin welcomed the WVU Political Science Class and Journalism class to the City Council 
meeting. 

James Giuliani, 256 Prarie Avenue, thanked Council for considering the TIF legislation for 
Willey and Richwood. He mentioned a building in First Ward that is being built on Prairie and South 
High that he feels is not in compliance. He noted that he was in a meeting with WVU Representatives and 
found out that the Private Developers are willing to pay B&O; Fire Fees. He stated this is a real positive 
and the City should really look into this new development, and would be glad to help. 

Dave Biafora, 6200 Mid-Atlantic Drive, noted that what Mr. Giuliani mentioned is the City 
billing B&O; Fire Fees to WVU Developers; that is what our law-suit is about. He stated that the City 
needs money to run the City for more services; whether the dollars come from Private Developer or 
Home Rule. He stated that it is too bad that we have to use our dollars to sue the City to do their job. He 

2 
Page 6 of 132



suggested that the City needs to bill Private Developers for most people are not going to pay unless they 
are billed. He asked the City Manager on Property Tax I do believe the City gets around 10 percent? City 
Manager responded in stating, "Yes", around that percentage. He commented that other Cities are doing 
well financially this City should be also; but you must follow the rules and I am not going away any time 
soon. He brought up that the VFW project is a problem the building is to big; the City has lots of issues 
and needs to start playing right. 

Dave Hopkinson, 313 Morgan Lane, Coopers Rock Foundation, presented to Council an amended 
Resolution and asked for their approval. He noted that the changes are in bold face on the second page of 
the Resolution He also stated the real reason to support this Resolution is for the health and quality of life 
and preservation offorestry. 

SPECIAL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Councilor Ganz reported that she was part of a WVU 
committee related to the Tailgaiting at Van Voorhis the City Police, WVU Police and property owners 
came to a resolution. She stated that West Virginia University place more trash receptacles and more 
porta johns, Chief Ed Preston talked to property owners about doing the same. WVU worked with 
Fraternities and Sororities as well as other Student Life Groups to remind them of the legality of their 
behavior; and to act responsibly. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND 
MERKOL AT AIRPORT: The below entitled Ordinance was presented for first reading. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN (LESSOR) AND MERKOL, INC., (LESSEE) REGARDING RESTAURANT SPACE 
LOCATED AT THE MORGANTOWN MUNICIPAL AIRPORT. 

After explanation from City Manager, motion by Shamberger, second by Bane, to pass the above 
entitled Ordinance to second reading. Motion carried 6-0. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 925.03 SETTING FORTH RATES, FEES AND 
CHARGES FOR SERVICE TO CUSTOMERS OF THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF THE CITY: 
The below entitled Ordinance was presented for first reading. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 925.03 OF THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN'S 
STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE BY SETTING FORTH THE RATES, FEES 
AND CHARGES FOR SERVICE TO CUSTOMERS OF THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF THE CITY 
OF MORGANTOWN. 

After explanation from City Manager Council suspended the rules to have Tim Ball, MUB 
Director, explain ordinance and answer questions. Motion by Nugent, second by Shamberger. Motion 
carried 6-0. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 923.06 & 923.13 REGARDING INDUSTRIAL 
WASTES. The below entitled Ordinance was presented for first reading. 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AMENDING SECTIONS 923.06 AND 
923.13 OF ITS STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE, AS THE SAME APPLIES 
TO INDUSTRIAL WASTES DISCHARGED INTO THE SEWER SYSTEM AND ANCILLARY 
SERVICES REGARDING INDUSTRIAL WASTES. 

3 
Page 7 of 132



After explanation from City Manager. Motion by Nugent, second by Bane, to pass the above 
entitled Ordinance to second reading. Motion carried 6-0. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 1329.02.The below entitled Ordinance was 
presented for first reading. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 1329.02 "DEFINITION OF TERMS" OF THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING CODE AS IT PERTAINS TO "OVERLAY DISTRICT." 

After explanation from City Manager, Council suspended the rules to have the City Planner Chris 
Fletcher give more explanation of ordinance and answer questions. Motion by Shamberger, second by 
Fike, to pass the above entitled Ordinance to second reading. Motion carried 6-0. 

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE AN "AIRPORT OVERLAY DISTRICT". The below 
entitled Ordinance was presented for first reading. 

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE AN "AIRPORT OVERLAY DISTRICT" THAT CONSIDERS 
SAFETY ISSUES AROUND THE MORGANTOWN MUNICIPAL AIRPORT (MGW) TO INCLUDE: 
RESTRICTING HEIGHTS OF ESTABLISHED USES, CONSTRUCTED STRUCTURES AND 
OBJECT OF NATURAL GROWTH WITH SAID OVERLAY DISTRICT; AND AMENDING THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY ADOPTING AN OFFICIAL SUPPLEMENTARY AIRPORT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT ZONING MAP. 

Motion by Shamberger, second by Ganz, to pass the above entitled Ordinance to second reading. 
Motion carried 6-0. 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE WV DIVISION OF MOTOR VEHICLES FOR GRANT FUNDS TO 
ENFORCE THE DUI AND UNDERAGE DRINKING LAWS OF OUR STATE. The above entitled 
Resolution was presented for approval. 

After explanation from City Manager, motion by Shamberger, second by Ganz, to adopt the above 
entitled Resolution. Motion carried 6-0. 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RECREATION WITHIN THE FORKS OF SCOTT 
RUN-PISGAH PROJECT AT COOPERS ROCK STATE FOREST. The above entitled Resolution 
was presented for approval. 

Motion by Ganz, second by Shamberger, to adopt the above entitled Resolution. Motion carried 
6-0. 

RESOLUTION TO BE KNOWN AND DESIGNATED AS THE "CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4" (THE "TIF DISTRICT"), WIDCH 
WILL BE SUBJECT TO A PUBLIC HEARING AND OTHER REQUIRED ACTIONS, THAT 
THE CITY WILL CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL THE TIF APPLICATION FOR THE 
CREATION OF THE TIF DISTRICT AND APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT PLAN(THE 
APPLICATION) AND, IF APPROVED, SUBMIT THE APPLICATION TO THE WV 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICE FOR CONSIDERATION AND OBTAIN ALL OTHER NECESSARY 
APPROVALS. The above entitled Resolution was presented for approval. 

4 
Page 8 of 132



After discussion, motion by Shamberger, second by Fike, to adopt the above entitled Ordinance to 
second reading. Motion carried 6-0. 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

INFORMATION: 

1. Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 

City Manager informed Council that the Police Department was awarded a $21,000 FY 14 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) to purchase personnel protection equipment for 
Police Officers. I appreciate the actions of the Police Department in looking and applying for grants to 
supplement funding of the department. 

2. Selection of City Auditor 

City Manager reported that the Audit Selection Committee rated and scored all applicants that 
provided proposal to perform the City Audit, and selected Tetrick & Bartlett, PLLC for the audit of 
financial statement for the year ending June 30, 2014. 

3. Update on Projects 

City Manager updated Council on the work Public Works Department repaired the stairs on North 
High Street and in reference to the Greenmont Pedestrian Bridge will be working with the DOH in 
developing a Scoping Meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Airport Supplemental Funding 

Mr. Mikorski proposed to supplement Morgantown Airport by $50,000 from the City's 
contingency fund and also recommended some ideas to increase enplanements to meet the 10,000 
enplanement goal. 

By consensus, Council agreed to supplement the Morgantown Airport by $50,000. 

REPORT FROM CITY CLERK: City Clerk, Linda Little, updated Council on two liquor license 
applications. Tin 202 located at 202 High Street and DOS Bros Cantina located at 350 High Street. 

REPORT FROM CITY ATTORNEY: No Report 

REPORT FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Councilor Bane: 

Councilor Kawecki: 

Councilor Nugent: 

5 

No Report 

Absent. 

Councilor Nugent asked the City Manager if 
there was any update on the pedestrian 

Page 9 of 132



Councilor Shamberger: 

Councilor Fike: 

Councilor Ganz: 

6 

crosswalk at Fayette and Beechurst. The City 
manager noted that DOH is looking into how it 
can be more proficient and also a timeline of 
when that will happen. Councilor Nugent also 
inquired about the Don Knotts Star. He also 
encouraged the public to stop by the museum at 
175 Kirk Street to take a look at the sports 
memorabilia from the surrounding schools. 
Councilor Nugent hopes that the open door 
policy continues with WVU in regards to the 
growth, traffic, and transportation in 
Morgantown. He also feels that the City is 
behind lacking communication with the public 
in regards to the Home Rule program. He feels 
the City should be communicating with the 
public in an open transparent fashion that 
informs the residents about the goals and 
aspirations for the City. 

Councilor Shamberger stated that she was 
excited about the Home Rule Program and noted 
that we need to be mindful that there is another 
part to it. She thanked all the friends at 
Woodburn that helped with the big cleanup. She 
also mentioned that the Safe Communities group 
is in the process of establishing work groups that 
will study different outlets in regards to safety 
issues. Councilor Shamberger also noted that 
they will be sending applications to seventh 
graders to compete in the West Virginia 
Municipal League competition. She also noted 
that there is a link on the BOP ARC website in 
regards to opinions on a new recreation facility 
in Morgantown. 

Councilor Fike stated that the American Institute 
of Economic Research designated Morgantown 
as number 16 in the top 20 of college towns in 
the United States and was excited that they 
recognized the City on the resources we have to 
offer not the university. He noted we should be 
proud of this recognition. 

Councilor Ganz announced that the Suncrest 
Neighborhood Association Meeting will be 
rescheduled to October 23rd at the Calvary 
Baptist Church. She noted that Damien Davis, 
City Engineer, Interim Public Works Director, 
will be there to talk about cut through streets. 
Councilor Ganz also clarified on how Fire 
Services are funded. She also thanked President 

Page 10 of 132



Mayor Selin: 

Gee for announcing that one of his President 
Leadership goals is to commit to our 
community. Councilor Ganz noted that she is 
looking forward to opportunities to meet with 
President Gee and staff and also commit to 
resolving some of the unintended consequences 
of growth. 

Mayor Selin stated that 600 people showed up 
Sunday at the Botanical Garden which hosted 
the Fall Children's Festival. She announced that 
there was a MAC Art show currently in progress 
and encouraged the public to attend and also 
mention the History Museum Exhibit 
"Hometown Exhibit". She noted the subject of 
public participation in the aspect as having our 
citizen's part of the decision making; and 
mentioned the Free Flow Hydro Power Plant 
meeting this evening at 7pm. She then reminded 
Council of the Greenbag Road Corridor Meeting 
at Marilla on 10-14 from 4 pm to 7pm. 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further items of business or discussion, the meeting adjourned by 
unanimous consent at 5 :20 p.m. 

City Clerk Mayor 

* A FULL TRANSCRIPT OF ALL COUNCIL MEETINGS IS AVAILABLE ON DVD AT THE MORGANTOWN CITY LIBRARY. 

7 
Page 11 of 132



Office of the City Manager 

ijtbe <!Cit!' of morgantown 
City Manager 

Jeff Mikorski, ICMA-CM 
389 SPRUCE STREET 

MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 26505 
(304) 284-7405 FAX: (304) 284-7430 

www.morgantownwv.gov 

City Manager's Report for City Council Meeting on 
October 21, 2014 

New Business 

1. Morgantown Police and Fire Annual Pension Fund Reports 
As seen in the attached memo from Finance Director, J.R. Sabatelli, the 2014 annual reports for the 
Police and Fire Pension Funds ate attached for approval by City Council. The reports are necessary 
to allow the State to release the insurance tax allocation that gets placed into the Pension Funds. As 
of June 30, 2014 the valuations are: 

Policemen's Pension Fund 
Firemen's Pension Fund 

$14,427,833 
$11,447,092 

I have reviewed the reports and recommend City Council to approve the pension reports. 

2. Salt purchase for 2014 
Last winter the City of Morgantown expended approximately 2,800 tons of salt on the City streets, 
nearly depleting the supply of salt on-hand. Salt bids were advertised earlier in the year, and the City 
of Morgantown received responses from three salt companies, two of which provided a "No Bid" 
response. The lone bidder with prices was Cargill Salt who bid on our "Option 2" Magnesium
chloride treated salt at a rate of $99. 97/ton, an increase of$26/ton from last year. We are purchasing 
1,500 tons of the treated salt for a total of $149,955. I recommend City Council approve the 
purchase of 1,500 tons of treated salt from Gargill Salt Company for a total of$149,955.00. 

If you recall, in the August 5, 2014 Council meeting we added additional funds to the snow 
treatment line to cover the expected high cost of salt this year. 

leffMikorski ICMA-CM, 
Morgantown City Manager 

Page 12 of 132



City of Morgantown 
Finance Department 
389 Spruce Street 
Morgantown, WV 26505 
Phone (304) 284-7407IFax 7418 

MEMO 
DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

October 13, 2014 

Jeff Mikorski, ICMA-CM, City Manager 

J.R. Sabatelli, CPA, Finance Director 1tfv 
FY14 Annual Reports of Police & Fire Pension Funds 

Attached are copies ofthe Annual Reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 for the 
Morgantown Police and Fire Pension Funds required by the WV Municipal Pensions Oversight 
Board. Please include this item on the agenda for the October 21 sl City Council meeting as part 
of your City Manager's report. Once Council approves the reports, we will be able to make 
requests for the State's insurance tax allocation. 

The most recent actuarial valuation is the 7/1/11 valuation. Pension fund balances have changed 
as follows: 

Policemen's Pension 

Firemen's Pension 

$12,779,244 

$10,106,257 

$12,600,466 $14,427,833 

$10,083,656 $11,447,092 

The funded ratio for the two plans decreased from the previous actuarial valuation as follows: 

7/1/11 

Policemen's Pension 29.33% 31.79% 28.37% 

Firemen's Pension 29.19% 31.48% 28.61% 

Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 

Page 13 of 132



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds 

to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board 
as required bV wv Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a) 

Pension Fund 

Treasurer 

Municipality 

Fiscal Year (July 1· June 30) 

Actuarial Funding Method 

PART I 

Beginning Fair Value of Pension Plan 

I. Revenue During Fiscal Year 

Morgantown Policemen's Pension & Relief Fund 

Joseph R. Sabatelll, Finance Director 

City of Morgantown, West Virginia 

July 1, 2013· June 30, 2014 

§ 
Standard Funding Method 
Optional Funding Method 

)( Alternative Funding Method (107%) 
% Necessary to Maintain Plan Solvency for 15 Years 

Conservation Funding Method 

Item 

July 1 

1. Employee Contributions for employees hired prior to Jan. I, 2010 I Percent of Gross Salary I 
Tohl amcuntl c:onrrivul l:: tJ bv employees or wilhheld rroullht!'rr .... I.fli"' ~ 

2. Employee Contributions for employees hired on or after Jan. 1. 2010 I Percent of Gr055 Salary I 
Toill amcunls r.:mhihul ed tJv cmr''''Y''f'sor wi!hhf:ld trrlll,lhd , sdl"I~!> 

3. Employee Contributions for Plans utillzin8 the Conservation Fundln8 Method I Percent of Gross SalaryJ 
T<Jf.1 jl n'lCll, IIiU mPl1, jtrJIOd lfr em~JIOVI:!tc'~ 01 wiLhheld Irom Ineil UliU;ei. 

4. Government Contributions 

a. From Parent local Government 
Required .mpJoyer conlrlbutioM from your municlpllllV 

b. Additional emjllover contributions from your munidpality 

c. From State Government Munlclp,1 Poniions Overslllh~ e~rd !PI.rniurn 'IJr,h"r£,tI .1 on ,". »nd . "'I1 19l1y In'!I''''''''., 
5. Earnings on Investments 

a. Net Appreciation/(Depreciation) of Fair Value of Investments 

b. Bond Interest 

c. DIvidends 

d. Net Realized Gain (loss) on Sale or Exchange of Assets 

e. Other 

S 

$ 

$ 

S 

S 

7.00% 

9.50% 

1.50% 

560.160.67 

124,705.24 

143,197.20 

718.302.24 

f. less Investment Expense S (118.187.63) 

Net Investment Income 
6. All Other Revenues 

pll!'''~~ 5PNltv 

Total Revenues lhe rum of ileiRS 1.1. Ih.ouch 1.64 

Amount 

$ 12,60DA65.97 

$ 209,039.14 

$ 51.742.54 

$ 

S 673,623.67 

$ 0.33 

$ 1,384,890.85 

$ 1.428.177.72 

$ 3,747,474.25 

Page 14 of 132



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds 
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board 

as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a) 

Item 
II Expenditures During Fiscal Year Dot'') lIollndWJe lnveslrnent fll~o~.C'", ~ef' 15 I on lIut l'IVe-

1. Benefits Paid 

Relil~lr~lll. dl~,)bjritv. sllI'Ii'mr iJnd <lIlV other Len-efils 

2. Withdrawals 

A'IMIUnl p .. w It)Qn)~lllIY'r'-o( former tt.,IiCl!t'/"I'('(I''1 or Ihf':lr u,,,,,,Non .. 1.llt l!~flnlll'" reJuin of coult ,b',lioJls mll.le by emploVt'E"\dUlffl, the pi"1utJ of Iheir '::'l'~l~P\t't"It 

3. Other Payments 
AJrnini'>1Uriv@i!Ip4i!l15ps;jnd other co~ts or p<iyrnf'llIs non repl'l!senrinp' bemdi: p<lyments or wltMraWill~ 

a. Administration MlJnlcip"I .. clministra:fon fees 

b. other EI(<imllll!! : Pension ~,.u .. ..,e .. p,.n,.'t"'_ ~~tlt. elf.. 

Total Expenditures The! fum of UtmtlU. lhrouch U,) ,b5 

Net Income/(Loss) 

Ending Fair Value of the Pension Plan June 30 

ii i Asset Allocation at End of Fiscal Year 
1. Cash and Short-Term Investments I Percent ofTotal Assets 13.37% 

Institution or Money Manager Type of Account Fair Value 

iI. Huntington Bank Checking $ 281.132.85 
b. Non-Interest Bearing $ -
c. Morgan Stanley Savings or Money Market Account S 1.647.655.19 
d. Certificates of Deposit $ . 
e. Re·Purchase Agreements $ -
Total Cash and Short-Term Inve~tments lIte Jum oUllOm, 1,4 OWIOUJh 1 ~, 

2. Government Securities I Percent of Total Assets 13.70% 

Institution or Monev Manager Type of Account Fair Value 
iI. Morgan Stanley Treasury Notes and Bonds $ 1,976,655.59 
b. Stilte and Municipal Bonds $ 
c. Mutual Funds (Government Bonds) S -
Total Government Securities (at fair value) Thor. ~lIm u( ilclm 2 a , h' ()Ulh 2. ( 

3. Corporate Bonds I Percent of Total Assets 21.54% 

Institution or Money Manager Type of Account Fair Value 
a. Morgan Stanley Bonds S 3.107.183.10 
b Mortgage·backed Securities $ -
c. Debentures S -
d. Mutual Funds (Corporate Bonds) S 

Total Corporate Bonds (at fair value) The ~um 0/ jt~m~ '3 a lh1ouu. J d 

4. Corporate Stocks I Percent of Total Assets 51.40% 

Amount 

S 1,896,160.17 

S 22.671.85 

$ 

$ 1,275.00 

$ 1.920.107.02 

$ 1.827.367.23 

$ 14,427,833.20 

Fair Value 

$ 1,928.788.04 

Fair Value 

$ 1.976.655.59 

Fair Value 

$ 3,107.183.10 

Page 15 of 132



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds 
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board 

as required by WV Code §8-ZZ-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-ZZ-ZZa(a) 

Institution or Monev Manager Type of Account Fair Value 
a. Morgan Stanley Individual Stocks Held $ 7.415.206.47 
b. Mutual Fund Shares (Equities) 

Total Corpor"t!! Stocks (at fair value) rhe! suO'! of Itli!ms 4.a I ht~, .. 4 b 

Total Assets Sum of 111.1. through 111.5. 

PART II 
Membership and Beneficiaries 

• plc· i)~t' (cpo,lllm ficures requ(!sl("d below, Ill' 111(" ",cal Vtaf ref'''' hn' [l111"1~!' 1 To 'ieure the AVI!'fi)g(" MOI,thlv ~JulnlJer of P(>r~un~ ... tid 'igure~ (0' eacn month and uil.lI(il: by J 7 piciJ.~~ fOund tD 

Iv. I) .ir: t.lI'liIl p ' .i'("~ 1\11 t!lIIpluvt'f> Illial h.wl: b'!l'n l>.J.id feu 100 hour~ In anv mnllrh In h~ Inri.uj"ci In rh~1 lIu'u,lh 

•• !llb.H' ff'pOillne lo.~1 numb!!'f 01 d l-;"h,litv o\ppliCdti()M {c((!lvelJ during Ihe flleaf yl'ar. the 5talln of I!'acn ilPplkaholl.1 III/! ~11f1 or thp hSCdl vellr, Iht' tuttll "J.lI,'il.iltltm\ )lIMited ""J denl(:tJ. :Iud the 

p",n.: II'dp,_· 01 di\ilhihlV 11t:''l~(il re:ipents ttl Ih~ (ololl number of "Cliyf:' m~mbNS 01 HIL' (und n,,~ tr.qulft'l'llpnt uhs(l~s §8 12·}3a(a) althe wvcod~ Ir the repo,t,s subm tlec 10 Ihe MunICipal Pension,> 

OVCt :" Chl UO:.ld rtlol 10 Occcmb\:, Jlst "I r;sr.h V'~M 

Item 

1. Members of your Pension Fund (",Iudt' Hl:!neftoaries 

1. Active Members ('urrenl number (If ctnr:J(j~'l'('~ u)f\trilllJlll1g 10 tll~ pe nsiolilulid 

2. Inactive Members N<ln ·"(ti,,,f' vp~tt:d rnpmb~r~ .JII() .emplc.vcc$ (In c"tc" J..:d lC:J\lC with()U\ (JaY 

II. Beneficiaries Receiving Periodic Benefit Payments During Fiscal Year 
1. Retirees 

2. Disability Retirees Indude~ the new olppl":,llions. arpruvl'd IJlIlIl\~ Irfi'\rl,r,~ Jl~"o.~ 

a. Number of Disability Applications received during the fiscal year 
b. Status of each Disability Application at end of fiscal year - please attach separate sheet with details 

(1.) Disability Applications Approved during Fiscal Year 
(2.) Disability Applications Denied during fiscal Year 

3. Percentage of Dlsabillt~ Benefit ReCipients to the Total of Active Members in the fund 
4. Survivors (of Deceased Members) Drawing Benefits 

Fair Value 

S 7.415.206.47 

S 14,427,833.20 

Avg. Monthlv U 

63.67 
1.00 

42.50 
8.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

12.56% 
8.67 

Page 16 of 132



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds 
to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board 

as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(8) and §8-22-22a(a) 

Pension Fund Morgantown Firemen's Pension & Relief Fund 

Treasurer Joseph R. Sabatelll. Finance Director 

Municipality City of Morgantown, West Virginia 

Fiscal Year (July 1 - June 30) July 1. 2013 - June 30. 2014 

Actuarial Funding Method § Standard Funding Method 
Optional Funding Method 

x Alternative Funding Method (107%) 
% Necessary to Maintain Plan Solvency for 15 Years 

Conservation Funding Method 

PARTI 
Item 

Beginning Fair Value of Pension Plan July 1 

I. Revenue During Fiscal Year 

1. Employee Contributions for employees hired prior to Jan. 1, 2010 I Percent of Gross Salary I 
Tot .. 1 amounts contrlbuled b", e,ltllluye(\') or wflhheld from IllQir !il1liule'S 

2. Employee Contributions for employees hired on or after Jan. 1, 2010 I Percent of Gross Salary I 
T()r~ 1 iimouotl ccnttlbu led II"( cmptMfti DI' wllh~ l.d fl otllllUlIi \oIIlad,., 

3. Employee Contributions for Plans utilizing the Conservation Funding Method I Percent of Gross Salary I 
Tt'll.)) ~mOLJnh contributed bvp.mplovees Dr wUhheld (rom rho II wlarlt!S 

4. Government Contri butions 
a. From Parent Local Government 

nf:quitad ~mptoy.r conlrlbuUon.& flonl yo" , mUII IC:'O.truv 

b. Additional employer contrlbutlons from Y9 ur municipali ty 

c. From St ate Government MunICIU • • Jlerutons o.C f Itht Boord !IHelM/1n wltt),lrll.0J 01') (Ire ~nd ("w.l~v ..tUU'lIjflU l 

5. Earnings on Investments 

a. Net Appredation/(Depreclatlon) of Fair Value of Investments 

b. Bond Interest 

c. Dividends 

d. Net Realized Ga in (l oss) on Sale or Exchange of Assets 

e. Other 

f . Less Investment Ewpense 

Net Investment Income 
6. All Other Revenues 

~ lnseiljjrl llt< Ul' 

Total Revenues The surn 0' Items 1.1. throUlh 1.6. 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

Amount 

$ 10,083,655.60 

7.00% 

S 136.295.51 
9.50% 

$ 47.248.43 
1.50% 

$ 

S 546.859.20 

$ 31.470.80 

S 899.245.29 

466.576.88 

111.227.42 

102.514.81 

575.286.32 

151.02 

(95.378.36) 

$ 1,160.378.09 

$ 2.821,497.32 

Page 17 of 132



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds 

to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board 
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a) 

Item 
II Expenditures During Fiscal Year Do('~ nor InrlutJe In"'f'sl",~nL h:ppm c- :o ~" I S r on I,rs! page 

l. Benefits Paid 

n.Ufemenl. dlUbilifY. lU/ Vivo( and any other bClnerits 

2. Withdrawals 

Amount nald to enlployees or 'ouner employee, Or their lUrvivors. representlflM relum (If contributions made bv II!'mplovee) durin& the period o'lheir Elmployrnenl 

3. Other Payments 
Adm"'lislrillive- expemes <lnd Qthl'!"r C:Oiot,s or ""yrm:nts non representinG benefit pavmenls or Wilhdrawals 

a. Administration Munlcfpal adminislratlon 'ttl 

b. Other f){;Jmt)lc: P(,II~IUll ScUC'ldlV C'J(pcnsc ~ , IlCI1t. L'I( 

Total Expenditures Tho",," of 11_ U.I . II\tO .. b 1I.J,b. 

Net Income/(Loss) 

Ending Fair Value of the Pension Plan June 30 

III Asset Allocation at End of Fiscal Year 
1. Cash and Short-Term Investments I Percent ofTotal Assets 11.92% 

Institution or Money Manager Tvpe of Account Fair Value 
a. Huntington Bank Checking S 212,914.39 
b. Non-Interest Bearing $ -
c. Morgan Stanlev Savings or Money Market Account S 1.151,625.32 
d. Certificates of Deposit $ . 
e. Re-Purchase Agreements S -

Total Cash and Short-Term Investments The sum of jl"n, l,.lhrouKh 1 e 

2. Government Securities I Percent ofT otal Assets 14.22% 

Institution or Money Manager Type of Account Fair Value 
a. Morgan Stanley Treasury Notes and Bonds $ 1,627,473.77 
b State and Municipal Bonds $ -
c. Mutual Funds (Government Bonds) $ . 

Total Government Securities (at fair value) I ht loU IT'! of tlonu J I Ihlouih 1 c 

3. Corporate Bonds I Percent ofTotal Assets 21.29% 

Institution or Monev Manager Type of Account Fair Value 

a. Morgan Stanley Bonds S 2,436,955.85 
b. Mortgage-backed Securities $ -
c. Debentures $ -
d. Mutual Funds (Corporate Bonds) $ -

Total Corporate Bonds (at fairvallleJ ' 'he ~utn of ItCf'IIi.l.a Ih rOUl1l3 t.I 

4. Corporate Stocks I Percent of Total Assets 52.57% 

Amount 

$ 1,408,587.57 

$ 47,548.39 

$ -
$ 1,924.64 

$ 1,458.060.60 

$ 1,363.436.72 

$ 11,447,092.32 

Fair Value 

$ 1.364,539.71 

Fair Value 

$ 1,627.473.77 

Fair Value 

$ 2.436.955.85 

Page 18 of 132



Annual Report of Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief Funds 

to the Municipal Pensions Oversight Board 
as required by WV Code §8-22-19(d)(1)(B) and §8-22-22a(a) 

Institution or Money Manager Type of Account Fair Value 
a. Morgan Stanley Individual Slacks Held S 6.018.122.99 
b. Mutual Fund Shares (E_quities) $ 

Total Corporate Stocks (at fair value) The ,>um or ilelll;' 4 01 Il~04I~h.4.b 

Total Assets Sum of 111.1. through 111.5. 

PART II 
Membership and Beneficiaries 

• rl~a~~ l~pOtl thto f'gurl!5 requested below. 101 the flK.J1 vear rcporled 011 polite 1 fo fiRurc Ihe AVenge M!)fllhty Numbr:r 01 PersDM. add figures f(.ll each munlh ~nd divide oy J"} rJec\o;.e '(lur,d 10 

'wo Ul'l·jtn:",llilfP.\ J\tl C'fYlploy.!t' rnoJ~1 haY!! hf.'~n paWi for 100 houlS In any month to be Included fn !h.!ll rnon!,", 

,. I'I-e~~!;' rep'Jrt nit'! tQ!alllumbe, of dmlbillfy o1ppll<,;""tIOfl5 If"(~ived dmlf"l5!. Ihtt fI,( rll ve-or, 1flP. .!Ita'us of I!'Mh olppllr.t1tion at the end 01 the fl.icill vear, 'hI: lut~1 Cll'1phL-:lIIc)II~ Io\r,mr(~rJ llull c.iCI1If.:J, dlld tll~ 

rl:.'lt.~nl.1!ol~ (}/ dl\.,b"lly Lrnld,{ n', ,pnllh If) ti,,," IOloll'lllmber of ac.tl'Je members olln~ rund I I'm ,eQullemt:nt ~Cltisties §8-22·2lCl!iII' uf til\' WV (otic if Ihe 'cl'tlrt fs ~ubm tted to the Mllnlcipill f'e')$.lons 

v,,'r.·,\r~:hl Boa',) tHlot IQ DI.'CC'nlllcr )hl or each YI!Jr 

Ilem 
I. Members of your Pension Fund rXdUlf~ BI!ucfkM"ra 

1. Active Members Current number or Cl rrpJ.uvn ' (;t)nlt1t:u ftnlt ro rho:! pe-mKln fund 

2. Inactive Members Non lIcll\le .,c~t('d mL'mben and erl1ployel!s on coAtended leaVe! without pay 

II. Beneficiaries Receiving Periodic Benefit Payments During Fiscal Vear 
1. Retirees 

2. Disability Retirees Indudes the new iIIpplkaliolls otf'll"lrOVen LI'" '1lf: repodinp, f)Criod 

a. Number of Disability Applications received during the fiscal year 
b. Status of each Disability Application at end of fiscal year - please attach separate sheet with details 

( 1.) Disability Applications Approved during Fiscal Year 
(2.) Disability Applications Denied during Fiscal Year 

3. Percentage of Dlsabilitv Benefit Recipients to the Total of Active Members in the fund 
4. Survivors (o f Deceased Members) Drawing Benefits 

Fair Value 

S 6.018.U2.99 

S 11,447,092.32 

AVI: Monthly U 

47.83 
0.00 

35.33 
2.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

4.18% 
15.25 

Page 19 of 132



Memo 
City of Morgantown 
Public Works Department 
To: Jeff City Manager 

From: Damien Davis Interim Public Works Director and City Engineer ~ 

Subject: Salt Bid - Bid Call 2015-01 

Date: eptember 16, 2014 

Salt bids were opened at 2:00pm on August 21 2014. The results are as foHows: (the 
total cost is based 011 ],500 tons fOT the City of Morgantown) 

VENDOR UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE COST COST 
(Option 1) (Option 2) (Option 1) (Option 2) 

Cargill Salt No Bid $99.97/ton No Bid $149,955.00 
Morton alt No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 
Compass Minerals No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 

Page 20 of 132



BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS - TERMS EXPIRED AND CURRENT VACANCIES 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS: 

Bernie Bossio and George Papandreas terms expire on 12/31/14. The applicants we received did not comply with 
State Code. Bernie Bossio does not wish to continue to serve and I am requesting Council's help in finding applicants. George 
wants to continue, since there are no applicants Council does not have to interview; just reappoint. Resident appointed by CC -
5 members. 

FIRE CIVIL SERVICE: 

Dan Hursh e-mailed that he must resign due to personal reasons. We are looking for a new Commissioner 
administratively. This is a City Manager appointment. 

MUBBOARD: 

Ron Banes term expires November 14, 2014. Tim Ball per attached memo respectfully recommends Ron Bane be re
appointed at the 10-21-14 meeting. 2 appt. reside in Mon. County. 3 residents of City. 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

Sam Loretta, First Ward Member and Tim Stranko, Second Ward Member terms expire on 12/31/2014. All wish to 
continue to serve. There were no applicants; Council will reappoint. Nominated by CM on recommendation by Cc. 

URBAN LANDSCAPE: 

Nicole Panaccione, Fourth Ward and Jerry Steketee, Seventh Ward are resigning terms expired on 7/1/2014. Attached 
are two applications for Council review for 7th ward: Joe Morris and Julie Cryser. (See attached Info.) Nominated by CM, one 
from each WD, 13 members with staggered terms and I Councilor. 

TRAFFIC COMMISSION: 

Bob Jones, First Ward Member resigned and we need to find a replacement. Am asking Councilor Bane to check in his 
ward before; advertising for candidates. Residents appointed by Council, must represent specific categories 

*POLICE & FIRE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSIONS: NEW PRESIDENTS APPOINTED IN JANUARY. 

*lnformationfor Boards and Commissions vacancies are placed in the Dominion Post, are advertised on the City's Government 
Station Channel 15, and are posted at the Library and also information is on the City's Web Page. 

*Council decided on 3-21-06 by unanimous consent that if there is only one candidate for Boards & Commissions, that they will 
not interview; the City Clerk will check with Council before scheduling a Special Meeting. 

*BZA and Planning Commission term expirations are advertised in October and interviews must be completed by December per 
State Law. 

10/14/14 

Page 21 of 132



MEMORANDUM 

TO: City Council 
Jeff Mikorski, City Manager 

FROM: Timothy L. Ball, General Manager, MUB ~~ 

DATE: October 15,2014 

SUBJECT: MUB BOARD 
Re-APPOINTMENT OF RON BANE 

At its meeting on October 14,2014, the MUB Board members directed that the following recommendation 
should be forwarded to City Council, as the Council members consider their selection of an appointee to fill 
the soon to expire tenn for the MUB Board Vice-President, Ron Bane. 

The MUB Board respectfully recommends that Ron Bane be re-appointed to a fullS year term on the 
Board. 

Page 22 of 132



Home Request Admin Form Admin 

Request Details 

User Admin Address Admin Reports My Account Resource Editor Logout Currently 
logged in 

as : 
ssullivan 

Request #29597 . Volunteer for City Boards and Commissions 

What is your work telephone number? 

Are you a Morgantown resident? 
Yes 

If Yes, how many years have you lived in the City of Morgantown? 
1 

In which City Ward do you live? 
Seventh 

Who is your employer? (If retired, answer "retired") 
Pearson 

What type of business are, or were, you employed in? 
Reporter for financial news service 

What is your job description? 

Do you have any professional certifications or licenses? 
No 

Do you have any pertinent special interests? 
I am a candidate in the Monongalia County extension service's master 
gardener program 

On which commission(s) are you interested in serving? 
Urban Landscape Commission 

Staff Activities 

Add New Sort 

Active 

Priority 
Normal " 

Received 9/29/2014 a13:15 PM 

Source of Request Anon Online by Anonymous 

Assigned To: Devon Milam Reassign 

Associated To: Anonymous Reassociate 

Est. Completion 10/6/2014 

Actual Complelion L 

Citizen Information 

Joe Morris 
532 Meridan S1. 532 Meridan SI 
Morgantown, WV 26505 
3045424242 
morris19@gmail.com 

Preferred Response Method: E-Mail 

Communication 

--

1------------------ ----------4 Select Communication Template 
Public Activities 

Add New 

Request was successfully submitted. 
by EXEC EXEC on 9/29/2014 at 3:16 PM 

Attachments 

Add New 

i Standard ,, ! 

Sort 

~,!~~L~t!~ 
View Email Text 

©GovPartner 2014 :: GovPartner.GSS.Request 

0 
0 

Page 23 of 132



Julie Cryscr 
(j Flage l SL • Morlf,lIllol\'lI, \"'.\'~. 2(j,'jO.'j • Pltolle: 30i(.-!i'lc)- W77 or:10 1-27G-1 929 • E-Mail: jllliC.(T).scl @mail.lwlI.cdu 

Experience 

\lVVl ; Davis College of Agrinllturt, 
~rttlll'fll Hesollrcts, a1Jd n(:Si~'11, Director of Developll.cnt Jali. :.~, ~Ol~ to presellt 

• Manage the development operations for a more than 2,000 student body college, the thinllargest college \~ithin West Virginia 

University, a more than 25,000 student university. 

• Developed an aggressive comprehensive campaign goal of $16.75 million to be complelcd by Dec. 31, 2015. 

• Made more than $500,000 in major gifts asks since January 2012; earned more than $250,000 in gifts since January 2012; and have 

more than $500,000 in additional proposals developed since January 2012. 

• Developed and launched the collegc's first annual fund campaign since 2009. 

• Write comprehensive major gift proposals ,md grants and work extensively with faculty and directors to cultivate donors. 

• Create dcvelopment goals and oqjectives and prepare major gift stratcgics. 

• Increased the college's donor portfolio from 30 to 50 sinccJanual}' 2012. 

• Develop stewardship and cultivation programs, working closely with five division directors, a commwucation team, and academic 

affairs. 

• Prepare and oversee development office budget. 

• Develop an aggressive travel schedule, with an average of 12 travel days per month and having had more than 40 face-to-face contacts 

since January 2012 and more than 75 milestone contacts. 

• Work closely \\~th program directors, faculty and staff to underst,md development needs and create strategies. 

• Oversee expenditures of private funds. Proficient in the use of Blackbaud Raiser's Edge and Financial Edge. 

• Manage all donor communications and work with a three-member communications team to coordinate all development 

communications. 

• Creatc all donor reports and direct communications. 

• Oversee all developmcnt operations. 

WV( 1 Extcnsion Service, Director of Developmcnt \-fay 15, ~OO(j toJan.~, ~Ol~ 

Developmellt 

• Coordinated major gifts program md annual fund program for WVU Extension Service, with offices in all 55 WV counties and more 

than 450 employees, and the West Virginia 4~H program, ,,~th more than 65,000 program participants state\~~de. 

• Secured major gifts of $25,000 or more from portfolio of nearly140 constituents. Increased giving from $250,000 during FY 2005-06 

to more than $1.5 million annually, with attainment topping $2 million in FY 09 and total production topping $6 million in five years. 

• Prepared major gin strategies. Created development goals and objectives. 

• Served as liaison and consultant for more than 25 county 4-H foundations. Developed strong plulanthropic relationships ,,~th 

individuals, corporations md foundations. 

• Developed stewardship programs. Prcp,u'cd and oversaw development office budget. Developed an aggressive travel schedule, with 

an average of 12 travel days per month ,md morc than 175 personal milesLonc contacts per year. 

• Workcd closely with program leaders, faculty and stafTto understand development needs and create strategies. Directed and 

evaluated dcvelopment staff and set annual goals. Met and exceeded performance baselines ,md goals. 

• Developed armualthank-a-thon. Oversaw expenditures of private funds. Proficient in the use of Blackbaud Raiser's Edge and 

Financial Edge. Conducted development training programs for county staff. 

Page 24 of 132



• Coordinated all public relations, including press releases, press events and story pitches, which resulted in placements in USA 

TO DAY, American Journalism Review and other regional and national publications. 

• Oversaw redesign of alumni magazine, as well as developed story content and wrote, reported and edited the magazine. 

• Coordinated all special events and alumni relations pro!,'Tams. 

• Developed minority recruitment plan and brochures. 

• Developed and coordinated yearly marketing calendar. 

• Coordinated innovative online Journalism 101 course for high school recruitment and developed high school recruitment and 

marketing program. 

• Developed total integrated marketing system. Managed marketing and development budget. 

• Wrote, edited and coordinated development of all other marketing materials. Wrote, developed and coordinated Web site content. 

C&C GroIlP, LLC, \1org-allloWIl, W. Va. 
Development Director, Partner January 2005 to December 200(j 

• Partner in integrated marketing communications firm that specialized in nonprofit consulting and marketing. Developed marketing 

campaign and collateral materials and helped launch The Community Foundation of North Central West Virginia Inc. Consulted 

with nonprofIts on marketing and fundraising, including mmual fund and major gifts. Developed collateral materials and marketing 

strategies for small for-profit firms, including healthcare companies. Developed mm'keting materials from complex medical and 

policy information. 

Pittsburgh Tribulle-Heview, Pittsburgh, Pa., 
Interim Day City Editor/Assistant City Editor November 199~) to August 2001 

• Trained reporters, from developing story ideas to time management. Developed training budget. Developed newsroom seminars and 

training programs. Assigned mId edited daily copy. Coached reporters. Managed day-to-day operations of 20-plus staff. Senred as 

assistant city editor in charge of health, education, transportation and general assignment reporters. Edited a nationally (National 

Hispanic Writers Association award winner) and regionally recognized series of stories on the struggles of a 5-year-old brain cancer 

patient and her family. 

Exponent-'felegram Clarksburg, W.Va., 
Assistant Manag-ing- Editor/City Editor/Newsroom Trainer August 1997 to October 1999 

• Edited and coached reporters. Designed training programs and conducted one-on-one sessions with reporters. Coordinated 

newsroom seminars with outside trainers. Developed newsroom writing goals, budgets. Assigned daily stories and worked with 

reporters on developing enterprise packages, as well as daily management of lO-plus staff. 

Charleston Gazette, Charleston, W.Va., Business Editor August 1995 to August 1 ~)97 

Page 25 of 132



AccomI.\isllments 
November 2008: Named Unit Award of Excellence winner during the WVU Extension Service Annual Conference and Awards 

Program. 

August 2000/Pittsburgh Tribune Review: Coordinated training program with Karen Brown Dunlap, head of the Poynter Institute for 

Media Studies, a prestigious journalism think tank and training facility in SI. Petersburg, Fla. 

July 2000/ The Poynter Institute for Media Studies: Coached writers on meeting coverage and writing experiential nanatives for two days 

during Poynter's summer fellowship program. 

Spring 1999, 2000 and 2001/Frecdom Forum Newsroom Training Seminar: One of 30 editors/newsroom trainers selected from national 

pool to attend training sessions held in San Francisco. 

Summer 1999/Poynter Institute for Media Studies, St. Petersburg, Fla.: One of 24 educators and newsroom managers selected nationally 

to attend a Competence in the Newsroom Seminar. 

Summer 1999,1998/Clarksburg Exponent-Telegram: Newspaper named West Virginia Press Association's Newspaper of Excellence for 

15,000 to 25,000 circulation. Part of a three-member management team brought in to revamp the paper. 

Summer 1997/ American Press Institute Seminar for Business Editors, Reston, Va. One of only 20 business editors selected from the 

U.S. to attend. 

Summer 1995/ Knight Fellowship for Business Writers, University of Maryland, College Park, Md. 

Summer 1993/Poynter Institute for Media Studies, St. Petersburg, Fla.: One of 16 people nationally accepted to six-week fellowship [or 

reporters and young writers. 

1992/West Virginia University: Selected as Outstanding News-Editorial and Outstanding Journalism Student. 

References 

Christine Martin 

Vice President, University Relations 

West Virginia University 

3"' Floor, Stewart Hall 

PO Box 6686 

Morgantown, WV 26506 

304-293-3857 

Steven C. Bonanno 

Interim Director 

WVU Extension Service 

80h Floor, Knapp Hall 

Morgantown, WV 26506-6031 

scbonanno@mail.wvu.edu 

304-293-5691 

Page 26 of 132



AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN ADDING A NEW ARTICLE 160 
TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CREATING A MORGANTOWN HOUSING 
ADVISORY COMMISSION. 

The City of Morgantown hereby ordains that a new Article 160 is added to its Administrative Code 
which reads as follows: 

160.01 ESTABLISHED. 

ARTICLE 160 
Housing Advisory Commission 

There is hereby established a Housing Advisory Commission for the City. 

160.02 PURPOSE AND DUTIES. 

The function of the Housing Advisory Commission is to: 

1. Serve as the medium for citizen advice and comment on housing issues. 
2. Provide advocacy for establishing and maintaining diversity in affordable equitable & 

accessible housing types and opportunities. 
3. Encourage and strengthen collaborative planning and communications between public and 

private housing sectors. 
4. Review, consider, and make recommendations to the City Manager and City Council on all 

aspects that affect public and private housing. 
S. Research and discuss housing trends and ideas and make recommendations to the City 

Manager and City Council regarding housing policy and ordinances. 
6. Sponsor educational programs on owner and non-owner occupied housing. 

160.03 MEMBERSHIP. 

The Housing Advisory Commission shall consist of twelve members who shall be appointed by 
Morgantown City Council as follows: 

One member from West Virginia University's Off-Campus Housing office; 

One member from West Virginia University's Office of Student Legal Services; 

One member from West Virginia University's Student Government; 

One member from West Virginia Fair Housing Network; 

One member being a licensed real estate representative; 

Two members representing the Morgantown Landlord Association; 

Page 27 of 132



One member being a President of a Neighborhood Association representing the 
Neighborhood Coordinating council; 

One at large member who shall be a resident of the City of Morgantown; and 

There shall be three ex-officio/non-voting members of the Commission as follows: 

One City Council member; 

One City of Morgantown Building Code Official; and 

One City of Morgantown Fire Marshal's office representative 

All voting members of the Commission, except for the WVU Student Government representative, 
shall be residents of the City of Morgantown. All members shall serve without compensation. 

160.04 TERMS OF OFFICE. 

All members of the Commission, except for the WVU Student Government representative and the 
Neighborhood Coordinating Council, shall serve a three-year term. The WVU Student 
Government representative and Neighborhood Coordinating Council representative shall serve a 
one-year term. 

160.05 OFFICERS. 

The Housing Advisory Commission shall meet as often as it may deem necessary, upon call of the 
chairperson. All meetings will be subject to the West Virginia Open Governmental Proceedings 
Act. 

160.06 MEETINGS. 

The Housing Advisory Commission shall meet as often as it may deem necessary, upon call of the 
chairperson. All meetings will be subject to the West Virginia Open Governmental Proceedings 
Act. 

160.07 WRITfEN REPORTS. 

The Commission shall submit annual reports to the City Manager and Council summarizing its 
past year's activities and recommendations for the ensuring year. 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon date of adoption. 

Page 28 of 132



FIRST READING: 

MAYOR 
ADOPTED: 

FILED: 

CITY CLERK 
RECORDED: 

Page 29 of 132



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN (LESSOR) AND MERKOL, INC. (LESSEE) REGARDING 
RESTAURANT SPACE LOCATED AT THE MORGANTOWN MUNICIPAL AIRPORT. 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance adopted on August 5, 2014, Morgantown City Council approved a 
lease agreement between the City and Merkol, Inc., and authorized its City 
Manager to execute the same; 

WHEREAS, Merkol, Inc. thereafter, approached City Administration and requested that the 
lease agreement be amended so as to extend the potential term of the lease from 
ten (10) to twenty (20) years; 

WHEREAS, City Administration has recommended to Morgantown City Council that it 
approve the amended lease agreement hereto attached; 

WHEREAS, Morgantown City Council is of the opinion that it is in the best interest of the City 
to approve the amended lease agreement, as presented. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Morgantown hereby ordains that the amended lease agreement, 
hereto attached with deleted matter struck through and new matter underlined, is approved and 
the City Manager is authorized to execute the same by and on behalf of the City of Morgantown. 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon date of adoption. 

FlRST READING: 
MAYOR 

ADOPTED: 

FILED: 
CITY CLERK 

RECORDED: 

Page 30 of 132



.RESTAURANT LEASE AGREEMENT 

CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
MORGANTOWN MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 

MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of ,2014, by and 
between THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN, 389 SPRUCE STREET, MORGANTOWN, 
WEST VIRGINIA, 26505, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the 
"CITY", and MERKOL, INC., a West Virginia corporation, hereinafter referred to as the 
"LESSEE". 

WHEREAS, the "CITY", owns, controls, and operates an airport known as the 
MORGANTOWN MUNICIPAL AIRPORT, hereinafter referred to as "AIRPORT", 
located in the City of Morgantown, Monongalia County, West Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, the "LESSEE" has submitted a proposal to the "CITY", which the 
Morgantown City Manager, on behalf of the "CITY", after careful evaluation, desires to 
accept, thereby granting to the "LESSEE", the right, privilege, and obligation to operate 
the aforesaid restaurant, as described and limited by the terms and conditions contained 
herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, the "CITY", and the "LESSEE", hereby mutually agree, 
each for itself, and for its successors and assigns, that the Airport Restaurant Lease 
Agreement conditions are as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

1.1 "Agreement shall mean the contract, including any and all attachments, between the 
"CITY", and "LESSEE", for the right, privilege and obligation to use such Airport 
property as defined herein for the conduct of an Airport Restaurant within said 
property under the terms and conditions expressly set forth herein. 

1.2 "Airport" shall mean the tract of land, with all the improvements thereon and to be 
erected thereon, designated as the "Morgantown Municipal Airport". 

1.3 "Airport Terminal" and "Terminal" shall mean the airline terminal building at the 
Airport. 

1.4 "Assigned Area" shall mean the area or areas at the Airport designated by this 

Page 31 of 132



Agreement and the Exhibits thereto as the place or places where the business of 
"LESSEE", may be conducted as designated by the "CITY". 

1.5 "Airport Manager" shall mean the Airport Manager of the Morgantown Municipal 
Airport, who is designated by the City of Morgantown to act with respect to all 
matters contained within this agreement. 

1.6 "Annual Rental Payment" is the amount of money due the Airport annually from 
"LESSEE", in consideration of the area or areas at the Airport designated by this 
Agreement. Payment will be made on a monthly basis according to the terms of this 
Agreement. 

1.7 "Minority" as defined by the Federal Aviation Administration is either: Female, 
Black, Hispanic, Asian (Chinese, Japanese, Pacific Islander), Filipino and American 
Indian or Alaskan Native. A "Disadvantaged Business Enterprise" is a business, 
whether it is a company or a corporation, of which at least 51 percent of the interest is 
owned and controlled by one or more minority group members. 

ARTICLE II 

2.1 The Assigned Area, as shown on Exhibit "A", located at the center of the Airport 
Terminal, shall consist of approximately two thousand nine hundred fifty eight 
(2,958) square feet of improved space on the main floor (runway level) of the Airport 
Terminal containing, at the time of execution of this Agreement, a dining area, 
counter serving area, cashier area, and kitchen, and approximately one thousand two 
hundred and seven one (1,271) square feet of unimproved space on the lower floor 
(main road level) of the Airport Terminal containing, at the time ofthis Agreement, a 
storage area, trash room, and rest room. 

ARTICLE III 

3.1 This Agreement shall be effective and binding upon execution. The original term of 
this Agreement shall be for a two (2) year period beginning August 1, November 1, 
2014, and ending on July 31, October 31, 2016, unless sooner terminated pursuant to 
this Agreement. "LESSEE" shall have four (4) nine {2} optional two (2) year terms 
thereafter. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for each of the foregoing 
optional two (2) year terms unless within ninety (90) days prior to the new term 
written notice is sent by "LESSEE" to "LESSOR" by certified mail advising 
"LESSOR" that the lease will not be renewed, provided "LESSEE" is not in default 
of any terms and conditions contained within this Agreement. 

fA the conelusion of all two (2) year extension periods, the parties may agree to 
extend this lease for a total period not to exeeed ten (10) years. Any such agreement 
to extend shall be in writing, be executed by the parties, and shall address the specifie 
time period of e~ctension and the rental payments to be paid by LESSEE. AU 
remaiBing tef:ffiS and conditions '+vithin this lease agreement shall be earried o\'er and 

2 

Page 32 of 132



be in effect during any agreed upon extension. The City Manager shall have sole 
discretion as to v{hether he/she wishes to approve said extension aagreement and 
execute the same on behalf of the City of Morgantovffi. 

3.2 It is the mutual intent of the parties that this Agreement remains in effect for the full 
Term, subject to each party's right on breach. 

ARTICLE IV 

USES AND PRIVILEGES 

4.1 The "LESSEE" has the right, privilege, and obligation to operate and manage the 
Airport Restaurant in the Assigned Area for the sale of food, alcoholic beverage, 
catering in the Airport Terminal. The rights above shall be exclusive as to the 
"LESSEE" only within the Assigned Area during the term, either original or 
extended, of this Agreement. The right to provide catering services at the Airport 
shall be non-exclusive. While not a part of the area being leased to "LESSEE" by 
this Agreement, "CITY" agrees to allow "LESSEE" to use the meeting room 
adjacent to the restaurant facilities, subject to the following conditions: 

a. That "LESSEE" must obtain permission from the Airport Manager in 
advance of each instance that "LESSEE" wishes to use said meeting 
room; 

b. That the "CITY" has the right to deny "LESSEE" use of said meeting 
room if it conflicts with the City's scheduled usage of said meeting room; 

c. That the "CITY" agrees to not convert the meeting room into any 
other type of room as long as this lease is in effect. 

4.2 Nothing herein shall be construed to preven~ the "CITY" from permitting any hotel 
or motel to establish food and beverage facilities on Airport property in conjunction' 
with its right to operate such hotel or motel; nor shall this Agreement prohibit or 
limit the right of the "CITY" to authorize the installation of vending machines for the 
sale of food, beverage, snack or tobacco items within the Airport Terminal, as the 
"CITY", in its sole discretion, may deem appropriate. 

4.3 "LESSEE" shall have reasonable rights of ingress and egress from the Airport 
Terminal to its Assigned Area during the hours of 6:00 a.m. until 11 :00 p.m. daily. 
Such rights of ingress or egress shall apply to the "LESSEE'S" employees, guests, 
Patrons, invitees, and suppliers. "LESSEE" shall be totally responsible for its 
Assigned Area, locks, and keys, as well as securing the facility when closed. 

4.4 "LESSEE" agrees not to use, or suffer or permit any person to use the Assigned 

3 

Page 33 of 132



Areas or any part thereof, for any illegal purposes, or for any purpose in violation of 
any Federal or State laws, rules, orders, regulations or ordinances of the "CITY" now 
in effect or hereafter enacted or adopted and in the event of any violation, or in case 
the "CITY", or its representatives, or any representatives of the Department of 
Health shall deem any conduct on the part of the "LESSEE" its agents or employees, 
to be objectionable or improper the "CITY" shall have the right and power and is 
hereby authorized by the "LESSEE" to at once declare the Agreement terminated 
without previous notice to the "LESSEE". 

ARTICLE V 

OPERATIONAL STANDARDS 

5.1 The "CITY", by and through its City Manager and Airport Manager, shall have 
the right to determine the "LESSEE'S" compliance with all operational conditions 
and requirements. "LESSEE'S" failure or refusal to comply with these Operational 
Standards shall be deemed a default in its performance hereunder and may be 
grounds for termination of this Agreement. 

5.2 The Airport Restaurant in the Assigned Area, shall be operated, ready to serve its 
guests and patrons, between the hours of 11 :00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m., Monday through 
Saturday and shall be closed on Sundays. The "LESSEE" shall have the option to 
operate beyond 7:00 p.m. 

5.3 The "LESSEE" shall operate the Airport Restaurant every day of the 
Agreement unless a holiday schedule or permission is granted in writing by the 
Airport Manager to close it as a result of some contingency beyond 
the control of the "CITY" or the "LESSEE" which shall make it necessary to close 
the restaurant for any portion ofthe period of this Agreement. 

5.4 All items served by the "LESSEE" shall be fIrst quality, shall conform to all 
applicable regulations and laws, and shall be purchased from reliable sources. 

5.5 "LESSEE" shall serve, at a minimum, separate and dedicated combination lunch 
and dinner menu. "LESSEE" shall serve adequate portions and charge reasonable 
and justifIable prices which are comparable to those maintained at other similar fIrst 
class establishments in the Morgantown, West Virginia, area, while at the same 
time maximizing revenues. 

5.6 "LESSEE" shall make all reasonable efforts to maintain, develop and increase 
business conducted by it in the Airport Terminal. 

5.7 "LESSEE" agrees to operate the Restaurant in a highly efficient and 
attractive manner and to conduct the operation in such a manner as to win public 
esteem. 

4 

Page 34 of 132



-. 

5.8 All operation shall be supervised at all times by an active, qualified, competent 
manager or a qualified subordinate in the manager's absence. The manager or 
qualified subordinate shall be available at the Assigned Area(s) during all business 
hours. 

5.9 "LESSEE" shall employ and maintain, at its expense, a sufficient number of 
employees, help and labor as may be necessary to provide, at all times, effective 
and efficient service required or authorized in this Agreement. "LESSEE" shall 
ensure and control the professional conduct, demeanor and appearance of its 
employees and representatives, who shall be properly trained by the "LESSEE" 
and shall possess such food handling certificates and qualifications as may be 
required by law in carrying out the responsibilities of this Agreement. 

5.10 All personnel employed by the "LESSEE" shall be neat, clean and courteous at 
all times. Employees shall wear appropriate uniforms and name tags while on duty. 
No loud, boisterous or otherwise improper actions or language shall be permitted 
while on or about the Airport. 

5.11 "LESSEE" shall comply with all health codes and laws applicable to the sale of 
food, non-alcoholic and alcoholic beverages. "LESSEE" shall cooperate with all 
local health and fire officials, and comply with all applicable codes, rules and 
regulations. 

5.12 "LESSEE" shall accept no less than two (2) major credit cards for purchases. No 
additional charges shall be levied against the customer using such credit card(s), 
nor shall discounts be permitted for customers paying cash. 

5.13 "LESSEE" shall remove and dispose of all garbage, waste and debris from the 
Assigned Areas and the grounds surrounding the Airport Restaurant and 
keep the Assigned Areas occupied under this Agreement in a clean and 
sanitary condition and in conformity with all laws and rules and regulations 
pertaining to sanitation and public health. A commercial trash dumpster shall be 
provided for all Airport tenants and each tenant, including "LESSEE", shall be 
responsible for its own disposal of garbage therein. 

ARTICLE VI 

RENTS, FEES, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

6.1 Annual Rent Payment - In consideration of the rights, privileges, and obligations 
granted by this Agreement, 'LESSEE" agrees to pay to the "CITY", for the two 

(2) year period beginning on August 1, November 1, 2014, and ending July 31, 
October 31, 2016, of the original term of this Agreement, a rental payment 
of $1,200.00 monthly or $14,400.00 annually. 

6.2 Annual Rental Payment - (1 st Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration 

5 

Page 35 of 132



of the rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement, "LESSEE" 
agrees to pay to the "CITY" during the first additional two (2) year period, 
beginning August 1, November 1, 2016, and ending July 31, October 31, 2018, of 
this Agreement, a rental payment of$1,300.00 monthly or $15,600.00 annually. 

6.3 Annual Rental Payment - (2nd Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration 
of the rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement, "LESSEE" 
agrees to pay to the "CITY" during the second 1\vo (2) year period, beginning 
August 1, November 1,2018, and ending July 31, October 31, 2020, ofthis 
Agreement, a rental payment of$1,400.00 monthly or $16,800.00 annually. 

6.4 Annual Rental Payment - (3 rd Additional Two Year (2) Year Period). In 
consideration of the rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement, 
"LESSEE" agrees to pay the "CITY" during the third two (2) year period, 
beginning August 1, November 1, 2020, and ending July 31, October 31,2022, of 
this Agreement, a rental payment of$1,500.00 or $18,000.00 annually. 

6.5 Annual Rental Payment - (4th Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration 
of the rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement, "LESSEE" 

agrees to pay the "CITY" during the fourth two (2) year period, beginning August 
+, November 1, 2022, and ending July 31, October 31, 2024, of this Agreement, a 
rental payment of$1,600.00 monthly or $19,200.00 annually. 

6.6 Annual Rental Payment - (5 th Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration of 
the rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement. "LESSEE' agrees 
to pay to the 'CITY" during the fifth additional two (2) year period, beginning 
November 1, 2024. and ending October 31. 2026 of this Agreement, a rental 
payment of $1,750 monthly or $21,000.00 annually. 

6.7 Annual Rental Payment - (6th Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration of 
the rights. privileges. and obligations granted by this Agreement, , LESSEE" agrees 
to pay to the CITY' during the second two (2) year period, beginning November 1, 

2026 and ending October 31,2028 of this Agreement, a rental payment of $1.900 
monthly or $22,800.00 annually. 

6.8 Annual Rental Payment - nth Additional Two Year (2) Year Period). In 
consideration ofllie rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement, 
"LESSEE" agrees to pay the "CITY" during the seventh two (2) year pedod, 

beginning November 1. 2028 and ending October 31, 2030, oftrus Agreement. a 
rental payment of $2,050 or $24,600.00 annually. 

6.9 Annual Rental Payment - (8th Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration 
of the rights, privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement. ' LESSE" 
agrees to pay the CITY' during the eighth two (2) year period. beginning 
November 1, 2030 and ending October 31, 2032. of this Agreement. a rental 
payment of $2,200.00 monthly or $26,400 annually. 

6 

Page 36 of 132



6.10 Annual Rental Payment - (9th Additional Two (2) Year Period). In consideration 
of the rights. privileges, and obligations granted by this Agreement "LESSEE" 
agrees to pay to the' CITY" during the ninth two (2) year period, beginning 
November 1. 2032. and ending October 31. 2034 oftrus Agreement, a rental 
payment of $2,350.00 monthly or $28,200.00 annually. 

&.4-6.11 Payments: All payments due the "CITY" from "LESSEE" shall be on a check, 
no cash shall be accepted, made payable to the following: 

Morgantown Municipal Airport 

(,;l.. 6.12 Place of Payment: All payments due the "CITY" from "LESSEE" shall be 
delivered to the following: 

City of Morgantown 
Airport Manager's Office 

Morgantown Municipal Airport 
100 Hart Field Road 

Morgantown, West Virginia, 26505 

~ 6.13 Delinquency Charge: A delinquency charge offive percent (5%) per month 
shall be added to payments required by Paragraphs 7.1 through 7.10, above, 
which are rendered more than five (5) days delinquent. 

ARTICLE VII 

7.1 All fixed improvements, equipment and interior design and decor installed by the 
"LESSEE", its agents, or contractors, including the plans and specifications, shall 
conform to all applicable Federal, State and local statutes, ordinances, building 
codes, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and Morgantown Municipal Airport 
rules and regulations. Prior to commencing such work, the "LESSEE" shall first 
obtain approval from the Airport Manager. The approval given by the "CITY" 
shall not constitute a representation or warranty as to such conformity; 
responsibility for compliance at all times shall remain in "LESSEE". 

7.2 All improvements, additions and alterations made to the Assigned Areas by the 
"LESSEE", shall be and remain the property of the "LESSEE" until the expiration 
of the term, either original or extended, of this Agreement or upon termination of 
this Agreement (whether by mutual rescission, cancellation, forfeiture, or 
otherwise), whichever first occurs, at which time the said improvements, less 
furniture and readily removable equipment owned by "LESSEE", shall become the 
property of the "CITY". 

7.3 The "LESSEE" shall not remove or demolish, in whole or in part, any improvements 

7 

Page 37 of 132



upon the assigned Areas without the written consent of the "CITY". Consent may 
be conditional upon the obligation of "LESSEE" to replace the same with a 
specified improvement. The "CITY" shall not withhold consent unreasonably. 

7.4 The "LESSEE" may, at its own expense, install and operate necessary and 
appropriate identification signs on the Airport for the purpose of advertising the 
Airport Restaurant, subject to the approval ofthe "CITY" as to the number, size, 
height, location, color and general type and design. 

ARTICLE VIII 

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 

8.1 The "LESSEE" agrees to provide at its own expense such maintenance, custodial, 
and cleaning services and supplies as may be necessary or required in the operation 
and maintenance of its Assigned Areas; including, but not limited to, proper 
maintenance of all grease traps and ventilation fans and hoods. 

8.2 The "LESSEE" agrees to maintain and make necessary repairs to the interior of all 
of its Assigned Areas and any equipment which might be furnished by the "CITY". 
"LESSEE" shall also maintain without limitation, the interior windows, doors and 
entrances, storefronts, signs, floor coverings, interior walls and ceiling, the surfaces 
of interior columns exclusive of structural deficiencies, any columns erected by the 

"LESSEE" and any lighting tubes or bulbs within the Assigned Areas. "LESSEE" 
agrees to keep and maintain in good and safe condition its electrical equipment and 
the plumbing fixtures located at or within its Assigned Areas. 

8.3 The "CITY" agrees to make, at its expense, all structural repairs to the building and 
repair or replacement of ceiling tiles provided, however, that if repairs or 
replacement are necessitated by the negligence of the "LESSEE", its agents, or 
employees, or by willful destruction, said structural repairs or replacements shall 
be at the expense of the "LESSEE". 

8.4 All repairs done by the "LESSEE" or on its behalf shall be of first class quality in 
both materials and workmanship. All repairs shall be made in conformity with 
the rules and regulations prescribed from time to time by Federal, State and/or 
local authorities having jurisdiction over the work in the "LESSEE'S" Assigned 

Areas. 
8.5 Representatives of the "CITY" shall have the right to enter the "LESSEE'S" 

Assigned Areas to: 

a. Inspect the Assigned Areas at reasonable intervals during the "LESSEE'S" 
regular business hours or at any time in case of emergency, to determine 
whether the "LESSEE" has complied with and is complying with the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement. The "CITY", Airport Manager, may, at 

8 

Page 38 of 132



itslher discretion, require the "LESSEE" to effect repairs at the "LESSEE'S" 
own cost; and 

b. Perform any and all things which "LESSEE" is obligated to and have failed to 
do after providing "LESSEE" fifteen (15) days written notice to act, including 
maintenance, repairs and replacements to "LESSEE" Assigned Areas. The 
cost of all labor , materials, and overhead charges required for performance of 
such work will be paid by the "LESSEE" to the "CITY" within ten (10) days 
following receipt of invoice for said charges by "LESSEE". 

ARTICLE IX 

UTILITIES 

9.1 The "CITY" shall pay for all electric current, water, and natural gas which enters 
the Assigned Area via presently installed underground utility lines and pipes, to 
the Terminal Building, and operated by local utility companies. The "LESSEE" 
shall be expected to exercise all practical economy in utilizing such utilities, and 
failure to do so will constitute unsatisfactory operations. The "CITY" shall have 
the right to insist upon and institute practices, which it deems necessary, which 
the "LESSEE" shall be expected to implement to insure misuse of abuse of this 
privilege. 

ARTICLE X 

LIABILITY, INDEMNIFY AND INSURANCE 

10.1 Each party hereto shall give to the other prompt and timely written notice of any 
claim made or suit instituted coming to its knowledge which in any way directly 
or indirectly, contingency or otherwise, affects or might affect the other party, and 
each shall have the right to participate in the defense of the same to the extent of 
its own interest. 

10.2 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the 
"LESSEE" is and shall be responsible to all parties for all of its acts or omissions, 
and the "CITY" shall in no way be responsible therefor. The "LESSEE", and its 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, shall not be construed to be employees 
or agents of the "CITY". It is further agreed that in its use and enjoyment ofthe 
Airport or premises and facilities herein referred to, the "LESSEE" will indemnify 
and save harmless the "CITY", and its members, officers, and City Council, 
employees and agents from any and all claims, liabilities, causes or actions or 
losses, (including the cost of defense) that may result in liability to the "CITY" 
from any actions or omissions on the part of the "LESSEE", and/or its 
employees, authorized agents or representatives, and shall always hold the 
"CITY", and its members, officers, City Council, employees and agents harmless 
from same. The "LESSEE" shall save harmless the "CITY", and its members, 

9 

Page 39 of 132



officers, City Council, employees and agents from all liabilities, claims, 
judgments, costs, and expenses, including all costs to defense, which may in any 
manner arise against the "CITY", and its members, officers, City Council, 
employees and agents in consequence of the granting of this Agreement, which 
results from the negligence of the "LESSEE", its agents, customers, servants, or 
employees. 

10.3 During the term, either original or extended, of this Agreement, the "LESSEE" 
shall effect and maintain, with a company satisfactory to the "CITY": 

a. Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance including, if deemed 
necessary by the "CITY", Automobile Liability Insurance - covering claims 
for damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, and for claims for 
property damage which may rise from operations under this Agreement, 
whether such operations are by "LESSEE" or its duly authorized agents, 
representatives or employees. The "LESSEE'S" public liability insurance 
shall include coverage for the sale of alcoholic beverages, and shall be in a 
minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for each occurrence 
and five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00) for property damage 
covering the acts of the "LESSEE", its agents and employees. "LESSEE" 
agrees to deliver copies of any and all policies of insurance and certificates of 
said insurance required by this Agreement to the Airport Manager upon the 
execution of this Agreement. Additionally, the "CITY" shall be notified in 
writing by the insurer and "LESSEE" at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
cancellation of any public liability insurance required under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. "LESSEE" agrees to insure that "CITY" and its 
officers, agents, and employees are held harmless against any and all claims 
arising out of "LESSEE'S" services at the Airport. 

b. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance - "LESSEE" 
shall provide such coverage for its operations under this Agreement in the 
amounts and form required by the Worker's Compensation Act and insurance 
laws of the State of West Virginia. 

10.4 "LESSEE" shall not use or permit the storage of any illumination oils, lamps, 
turpentine, benzene, naptha, and other similar substances, or explosive of any 

kind, or any substance or thing prohibited in the standard policies of fire 
insurance in the State of West Virginia, or by the West Virginia State Fire Code. 

10.5 It is understood that smoking is prohibited within the Airport facility and that 
there are designated smoking areas on the north and south ends outside of 
the building. 

10.6 During the term, either original or extended, of this Agreement, the "CITY", 
at its sole discretion, shall have the right to adjust the minimum amounts of all 
liability insurance coverage required hereunder. 

10 

Page 40 of 132



ARTICLE XI 

ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, AND CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP 

11.1 The "LESSEE" shall not assign, delegate, sublease or transfer this Agreement or 
any other right, privilege, or license conferred by this Agreement, or any duty or 
obligation slated herein, either in whole or in part, or sublet or in any manner 
encumber the Assigned Areas or any portion thereof, except as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement, without obtaining in advance the written consent of 
the "CITY", \\moh may be v/ithheld at the sole disoretion of the "CITY" which 
will not be unreasonably withheld. 

11.2 The "LESSEE" must obtain the consent of the "CITY" to keep the Agreement in 
effect prior to any transfer or merger of ownership between the "LESSEE" and 
any other legal entity. Transfer shall include the transfer of corporate stock 
from one party to another, but shall not include transfers of stock among 
shareholders of record as of the date of execution of this lease agreement. 

ARTICLE XII 

COMPLIANCE 

12.1 The "LESSEE", its officers, agents, servants, employees, contractors, licensees, 
and any other person over which the "LESSEE" has the right to control shall 
comply with all present and future laws, ordinances, orders, directives, rules and 
regulations of the Federal, State, County, and "CITY" governments which may 
be applicable to its operations at the Airport. 

12.2 "LESSEE" shall pay on or before its respective due dates, to the appropriate 
collecting authority, all Federal, State, and local taxes and fees, which are now 
or may hereafter be levied upon the Assigned Areas, or upon "LESSEE" or upon 
the business conducted on the Assigned Areas, or upon any of the "LESSEE" 
property used in connection therewith; and shall have and maintain in current 
status all Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required in the operation 
of the business conducted by the "LESSEE". 

12.3 "LESSEE" agrees to pay, or guarantee payment of all lawful fines and penalties 
as may be assessed by the "CITY" or against the "CITY" for violations of 
Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, ruling or regulations, or Airport 
rules and regulations caused by "LESSEE'S" acts or omissions or those of its 
employees or agents. 

12.4 "LESSEE", its employees and agents shall at all times comply with rules and 
regulations for the Morgantown Municipal Airport (and its Manager) as may be 
adopted from time to time by the "CITY". In the event that there is a conflict 
between the provisions of this Agreement and such rules and regulations, this 

11 

Page 41 of 132



Agreement shall govern unless otherwise directed by the "CITY". 

ARTICLE XIII 

CANCELLATION BY "LESSEE" 

13.1 In addition to all other remedies available to the "LES SEE" this Agreement shall 
be subject to cancellation by the "LESSEE" by giving a thirty (30) day written 
notice to the "CITY", should anyone or more of the following occur, provided 
however, that none of the compensation and fees which are to be paid by 
"LESSEE" herein will be refunded to "LESSEE": 

a. The abandonment or the permanent removal of all certificated passenger 
airline service from the Airport for longer than six (6) months. 

b. The assumption by the United States Government, or any additional agency 
thereof, of the operation, control or uses of the Airport, or any substantial part 
or parts thereof in such manner as to substantially restrict "LESSEE" from 
operating thereon for a period of at least six (6) months. 

c. The complete destruction of all of a substantial portion of the Assigned Areas 
from a cause other than the negligence or omission to act of "LESSEE", its 
subcontractors, agents or employees, and the failure of the "CITY" to repair or 
reconstruct said premises within six (6) months after such destruction. 

d. The breach by the "CITY" in the performance of any covenant or any 
Agreement required to be performed by the "CITY" and the failure of the 
"CITY" to commence to remedy such breach for a period ofthirty (30) days 
after receipt of notice of such breach by "CITY" from "LESSEE". 

e. The issuance by any court of competent jurisdiction of any injunction 
preventing or restraining the use of the Airport in such a manner as to 
substantially restrict the "LESSEE" from conducting its restaurant business 
not caused by the act or omission of the "LESSEE" and the remaining in force 
of such injunction for at least ninety (90) days. 

ARTICLE XIV 

CANCELLATION BY "CITY" 

14.1 In addition to all other remedies provided herein or at law, "CITY" may cancel 
this Agreement by giving a thirty (30) day written notice to the "LESSEE" should 
anyone or more of the following events occur: 

a. "LESSEE" fails to make any payments required hereunder when due to the 
"CITY" or within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice from the 
"CITY" of non-payment. 

b. "LESSEE" permits to continue, for a period of three (3) days after receipt of 
written notice from the Airport Manager, the unsafe or unsanitary conditions 
or practices in or about the Assigned Areas; provided however, if the unsafe 

12 

Page 42 of 132



or unsanitary condition is such as to require replacement, repair, or 
construction, "LESSEE" shall have a reasonable time in which to correct said 
condition, but must begin action on the matter immediately upon receipt of 
said notice. 

c. The interest of "LESSEE" under this Agreement is transferred, passes to or 
devolves upon, by operation of law or otherwise, any other person, firm or 
corporation without the prior written consent of the "CITY", as per sections 
11.1 and 11.2 herein. 

d. "LESSEE" becomes, without written approval of the "CITY" a successor or 
merger corporation in a merger, a constituent corporation in a consolidation, 
or a corporation in dissolution, as per sections 11.1 and 11.2 herein. 

e. "LESSEE" shall neglect or fail to perform and observe any other promise, 
covenant or condition set forth in this Agreement within ten (l0) days after 
receipt of written notice of breach from the "CITY" or the Airport Manager, 
except where fulfillment of such obligation requires activity over a period of 
time and "LESSEE" has commenced to perform whatever may be required 
within ten (10) days after receipt of such notice and continues such 
performance without interruption except for causes beyond its control. 

f. The levy of any attachment or execution, or the appointment of any receiver, 
or the execution of any other process of any court of competent jurisdiction 
which is not vacated, dismissed or set aside within a period of ninety (90) 
days and which does, or as a direct consequence of such process will, interfere 
with "LESSEE'S" use of the Assigned Areas or with its operations under this 
Agreement. 

g. "LESSEE" becomes insolvent, or takes the benefit of any present or future 
insolvency statute, or make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or files 
a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition or answer seeking an 
arrangement for its reorganization, or the arrangement for their reorganization, 
or the readjustment ofthe indebtedness under the Federal bankruptcy laws or 
under any other law or statute of the United States, or under any State laws, or 
consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all or 
substantially all of the property or its property located within the Assigned 
Area. 

h. A petition under any part ofthe Federal bankruptcy laws, or an action under 
any present or future insolvency law or statute is filed against "LESSEE" and 
is not dismissed within ninety (90) days. 

1. By or pursuant to, or under authority of, any legislative act, resolution or rule, 
order or decree of any court, governmental board, agency or officer having 
jurisdiction, a receiver, trustee or liquidator takes possession or control or all 
or substantially all of the property of "LESSEE", and such possession or 
control continues in effect for a period of ninety (90) days. 

j. Any lien is filed against the Assigned Area (s) because of any act or omission 
of "LESSEE" and such lien is not removed, enjoined or a bond for satisfaction 
of such lien is not posted within thirty (30) days. 

13 

Page 43 of 132



k. "LESSEE" abandons, deserts, vacates or discontinues its operation of the 
business herein authorized for a period of five (5) days without prior written 
consent of the "CITY". 

14.2 Acceptance by the "CITY" of any rental payments specified herein, after a breach 
of any of the terms of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any right 
on the part of the "CITY" to cancel this Agreement on account of such breach, 
unless said breach is fully and completely corrected and cured to the satisfaction 
ofthe "CITY" prior to said cancellation, or of the "CITY'S" right to cancel this 
Agreement because of any subsequent breach of a similar or different nature. 

14.3 The "CITY" may reenter the Assigned Areas and may remove all persons and 
property from same upon the date or reentry specified in the "CITY'S" written 
notice to "LESSEE". Such date of reentry shall not be less than thirty (30) days 
from the date of said notice. Upon any removal of "LESSEE'S" property by 
"CITY" hereunder, said property may be stored at a public warehouse or 
elsewhere at "LESSEE'S" sole cost and expense. 

ARTICLE XV 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15 .1 Nondiscrimination 

a. The "LESSEE", as a part ofthe consideration hereof, does hereby covenant 
and agree: 

1. That no person, on the grounds of race, color, religion, creed, political 
ideas, sex, sexual orientation, age, or handicap shall be excluded from 
participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities; 

2. That in the construction of any improvements and the furnishing of 
services, no person, on the grounds of race, color, religion, creed, political 
ideas, sex, sexual orientation, age, or handicap, shall be excluded from 
participation in, denied benefits of, or be otherwise subject to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities; 

3. That the "LESSEE" shall use the Assigned Areas in compliance with all 
other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the 
Secretary Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of 
the Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended. 

4. That the "CITY" has provided handicapped accessible ingress and egress 
to the leased area and "LESSEE" shall not close or otherwise cause said 
access way to be nonfunctional without first providing an alternative 

14 

Page 44 of 132



means of access which has been approved in writing by the Airport 
Manager. 

b. The "LESSEE" shall furnish its accommodations and/or services on a fair, 
equal, and nondiscriminatory basis to all users thereof, and it shall charge fair, 
reasonable, and nondiscriminatory prices for each unit of services; however, 
the "LESSEE" may be allowed to make reasonable discounts to other similar 
type of price reductions to purchasers on a nondiscriminatory basis. 

c. "LESSEE" acknowledges that the provisions of 49 CFR, Part 23, 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and 14 CFR, Part 152, AffIrmative 
Action Employment Program, are applicable to the activities of "LESSEE" 
under the terms of this Agreement, and unless exempted by said regulations, 
hereby agrees to comply with all requirements of the Department, the Federal 
Aviation Administration, and the U.S. Department of Transportation, in 
reference thereto. These requirements may include, but not be limited to, the 
compliance with MBE, DBE, andlor Employment Affirmative Action 
participation goals, the keeping of certain records of good faith compliance 
efforts, which would be subject to review by the various agencies, the 
submission of various reports, and including, if directed by the Department, 
the contracting of specifIed percentage of goods and services contracts to 
Minority Business Enterprises. 

d. Noncompliance by "LESSEE" with the requirements of section 16.1 of this 
Agreement shall constitute a material breach thereof. In the event of such 
noncompliance, the "CITY" shall have the right to cancel this Agreement after 
all actions required by the United States Government have been exhausted. 

15.2 Federal Aviation Act, Section 300: Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to 
grant the "LESSEE" any exclusive right or privilege within the meaning of 
Section 308 of the Federal Aviation Act for the conduct of any aeronautical 
activity on the Airport, except that, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, 
the "LESSEE" shall have the right to process the Assigned Area under the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

15.3 Subordination to Agreements With The United States Government: This 
Agreement is subject and subordinate to the provisions of any agreement 
heretofore or hereafter made between the "CITY" and the United States 
Government, relative to the operations and maintenance of the Airport, the 
execution of which has been required as a condition precedent to the transfer 
of federal rights or property to the "CITY" for Airport purposes, or the 
expenditure of federal funds for the improvement or development of the Airport, 
in accordance with the provisions ofthe Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as 
amended from time to time. The "CITY" covenants that to the best of its 
knowledge and belief it has no existing agreements with the United States 
Government in conflict with the express provisions of this Agreement. 

15.4 Waiver of Damages: The "LESSEE" hereby expressly waives any and all 

15 

Page 45 of 132



claims for compensation for any and all loss or damages sustained by reason 
or any defect, deficiency or impairment of the electrical apparatus, water 
supply equipment, equipment or wires used in the Assigned Areas, herein 
mentioned, or by reason of any loss or impairment of light, current or water 
supply which may occur from time to time for any cause, or for loss or damage 
sustained by the "LESSEE" resulting from fire, water, windstorm, tornado, civil 
commotion, or riots and the "LESSEE" hereby expressly waives all right, claims 
and demands and forever releases the "CITY", its officers, employees and 
agents, from any and all demands, claims, actions, and causes of action arising 
from any such cause. 

15.5 Nonwaiver of Rights: Failure of the "CITY" to insist upon strict performance of 
any provision or condition of this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein, 
shall not operate or be construed to be a waiver of such condition or right in any 
other instance. 

15.6 Notices: Notices required herein may be given by registered or certified mail by 
Depositing the same in the United State mail in the continental United States, 
postage prepaid. Any such notice so mailed shall be presumed to have been 
received by the addresses seventy-two (72) hours after deposit of same in the 
mail. Notices in writing may also be delivered by personal service of said notice 
to the agents for each party at the addresses listed below. Either party shall 
have the right, by giving notice to the other, to change the address at which its 
notices are to be received. Until such change is made, notices to the "CITY" 
shall be delivered as follows: 

City of Morgantown 
Airport Manager's Office 

Morgantown Municipal Airport 
Morgantown, WV 26505 

Notices to "LESSEE" shall be deemed sufficient if in writing and mailed to, 
registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed to "LESSEE" at: 

Elias Hishmeh 
82 Hart Field Road 

Suite 255 
Morgantown, WV 26505 

15.7 Right to Develop Airport: It is further covenanted and agreed that the "CITY" 
reserves the right to further develop or improve the Airport, including the 
Terminal and all landing areas as it may see fit, regardless of the desires 
or views ofthe "LESSEE" and without interference or hindrance. The "CITY" 
shall have the right to construct or install over, in, under or through the 
Assigned Areas new lines, pipes, mains, wires, conduit and equipment. 

16 

Page 46 of 132



15.8 Relationship of Parties: Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed 
by the parties hereto, or any third party, as creating the relationship of principal 
and agent, partners, joint venture, or any other similar such relationship, 
between the CITY OF MORGANTOWN and "LESSEE". The parties shall 
understand and agree that neither the method of computation of rent, nor any 
other provision contained herein, nor any acts of the parties hereto creates a 
relationship other than the relationship of the "CITY" and "LESSEE". This 
agreement is not intended to and shall not be construed to vest in the "LESSEE" 
any title, tenure or any property rights in the real estate, fixtures or personal 
property belonging to the "CITY" now located, or which may hereafter be 
located, in or around the Assigned Areas. 

15.9 Right to Amend: In the event that the Federal Aviation Administration or its 
successors requires modifications or changes in this Agreement as a 
condition precedent to the granting of funds for the improvement of the Airport 
or otherwise, the "LESSEE" agrees to consent to such amendments, 
modifications, revisions, supplements, or decisions of any of the terms, 
conditions, or requirements of this Agreement as may be reasonably required. 

15.10 Termination: Upon the termination or cancellation of this Agreement for any 
cause the "LESSEE" shall vacate the Assigned Area and shall not remove any 
of the "LESSEE'S" supplies, property or equipment from the Assigned Areas 
until all license fees, Business and Occupation taxes, and other sums due the 
"CITY" have been paid. 

ARTICLE XVI 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

16.1 The parties hereto understand and agree that this instrument, including the 
items specifically incorporated by reference into it consistent with the terms of 
this document, and its attached Exhibits contain the entire Agreement between 
the parties. The parties further understand and agree that neither party nor its 
agents have made representations or promises with respect to this Agreement 
except as expressly set forth herein; and that no claim or liability shall arise for 
any representations or promises not expressly stated in this Agreement, any 
other writing or parole agreement with the other party being expressly waived. 

17 

Page 47 of 132



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
a municipal corporation, 
"CITY" 

By: --------------------------
Jeff Mikorski, City Manager 

Witness: -----------------------

18 

MERKOL, INC. A West Virginia 
corporation, "LESSEE" 
"MERKOL, INC." 

By: ____________________ _ 

Its: ____________________ __ 

Witness: -------------------

Page 48 of 132



CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECI10N 925.03 OF THE 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN'S STREETS, lITILITIES AND 
PUBLIC SERVICES CODE BY SEITING FORTH THE RATES, 
FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICE TO CUSTOMERS OF 
THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN. 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN HEREBY ORDAINS: The 
following rules, rates and charges are hereby fixed, determined and established for 
municipal sewerage services provided to all general domestic, commercial, industrial 
and resale users and customers of the City of Morgantown's Municipal Sewage 
Treatment Plant and Collection System, commencing upon the effective date as 
hereinafter provided, and in accordance with the following Rates and Schedules: 

SECTION 1- TARIFF 

923.03 RATE SCHEDULES 

The following schedules of rates, fees, charges, delayed payment penalty charges, service 
connection charges, reconnection charges and opening or transferring account charges are hereby 
fixed and determined as the rates, fees, charges, delayed payment penalty charges, service 
connection charges, reconnection charges and opening or transferring account charges to be 
charged to consumers of the sewer works system of the City throughout the entire territory served. 

SCHEDULE NO.1 

(a) Applicable to entire territory served, except that served by Cheat Lake Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, the former Canyon Public Service District, and the former Scolt's Run Public 
Service District. Effective for bills rendered on or after July 1,2014 except as otherwise noted. 

(1) Availability of service. Available for sanitary sewer service. 

(2) Rate. Based upon the metered amount of water suppJied. 

Page 49 of 132



Gallol15 Used 

First 60,000 per month, or 120,000 bi-monthly 
All Over 60,000 per month, or 120,000 bi-monthly 

(3) Minimum Charge. 
Per month 
Bi-monthly 

$4.66 
$9.32 

$4.66 per 1,000 gallons 
$4.00 per 1,000 gallons 

(4) Tap fee. The following charges are to be made whenever the utility installs a new 
tap to serve an applicant. A tap fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) will be charged to customers 
applying for service before construction is completed adjacent to the customer's premises in 
connection with a certificate proceeding before the Commission. This pre- construction tap fee 
will be invalid after the completion of construction adjacent to an applicant's premises that is 
associated with a certificate proceeding. A tap fee of seven hundred dollars ($700.00) will be 
charged to all customers who apply for service outside of a certificate proceeding before the 
Commission for each new tap system. 

(5) Delayed payment penalty. The above tariff is net. On an current usage billings 
not paid in full when due, ten percent (10%) will be added to the net current amount 
unpaid. This delayed payment penalty is not interest and is only to be conected once for 
each month where it is appropriate. 

(6) Reconnection charge. A fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00) during Utility Board 
regular working hours and twenty-five dollars ($25.00) after hours shall be charged whenever 
the service is disconnected for violation of rules, nonpayment of bills, or fraudulent use of 
water. No such charge shall be assessed if the customer has paid a water reconnection charge 
for the same reconnection. 

(7) Leak adjustment. 0.396 per M gallons is to be used when the bill reflects 
unusual consumption which can be attributed to eligible water leakage on the customers of 
the meter. This rate shall beside applied to all such unusual consumption above the 
customer's historical average usage. 

(8) Sunshine Estates Debt Service Surcharge. Applicable only to customers in 
the Sunshine Estates area: $32.00 per month per customer, or $64.00 bi-monthly per customer. 
This surcharge will be evaluated annually and in the event that a change in the number of 
customers results in a five percent (5%) change in the rate, the rate will be adjusted. 

( I ) (9) Sunshine Estates DCPSD Transportation Surcharge. Applicable only to customers 
in the Sunshine Estates area: ~ ~ per 1,000 gallons. 

(l0) The surcharges described immediately above shall become effective forty-
five (45) days after enactment, or as soon thereafter as the same may be approved by the 
Public Service Commission of West Virginia; and upon completion of the Sunshine Estates 
Sewer Project. 

( I) Indicates Increase 

Page 50 of 132



(11) Returned Check Charge. A service charge of $20.00 will be imposed upon any 
customer whose check for payment of charges is returned by the bank due to insufficient funds. 

SCHEDULE NO.2 

(b) Applicable to territory served by Cheat Lake Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
Effective for bills rendered on or afrer July 1, 2014. 

(1) A vail ability of service. Available for sanitary sewer service. 

(2) Rate. Based upon the metered amount of water supplied. 

Gallons Used 
First 
Next 
Next 
Next 
Next 
All Over 

2,000 per month 
8,000 per month 
20,000 per month 
30,000 per month 
940,000 per month 
1,000,000 per month 

(3) Minimum Charge. 
A. Permonth 
B. Bimonthly 

or 4,000 bi-monthly 
or 16,000 bi-monthly 
or 40,000 bi-monthly 
or 60,000 bimonthly 
or 1.880,000 bi-monthly 
or 2,000,000 bi-monthly 

21.70 
43.40 

10.85 per 1,000 gallons 
9.92 per 1,000 gallons 
9.30 per 1,000 gallons 
8.68 per 1,000 gallons 
7.44 per 1,000 gallons 
6.82 per 1.000 gallons 

(4) Tap fee. A fee of seven hundred dollars ($700.00) will be charged for new 
customers connecting to the sewerage system. 

(5) Delayed Pawent Penalty. The above tariff is net. On all current usage billings 
not paid in full when due, ten percent (10%) will be added to the net current amount unpaid. This 
delayed payment penalty is not interest and is only to be collected once for each month where it 
is appropriate. 

(6) Reconnection Charge. A fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00) during Utility Board 
regular working hours and twenty-five dollars ($25.00) after hours shall be charges whenever the 
service is disconnected for violation of rules, nonpayment of bills, or fraudulent use of water. No 
such charge shall be assessed if the customer has paid a water reconnection charge for the same 
reconnection. 

(7) Leak Adjustment. $1.404 per M gallons is to be used when the bill reflects 
unusual consumption which can be attributed to eligible water leakage on the customer's side of 
the meter. This rate shall be applied to all such unusual consumption above the customer's 
historical average usage. 

Page 51 of 132



(8) Returned Check Charge. A service charge of $20.00 wi)) be imposed upon any 
customer whose check for payment of charges is returned by the bank due to insufficient funds. 

SCHEDULE NO.3 

(c) Applicable to territory served by Star City Wastewater Treatment Plant, and delivered by 
other systems._Effective for bills rendered on or after January I, 2012. 

(1) Availability of service, Available for sanitary sewer service to other systems. 

(2) Rates. All wastewater from other systems will be treated at the approved rate of 
$1.50 per 1,000 gallons. 

SCHEDULE NO.4 

(d) Applicable to the fonner Canyon Public Service District service area. Effective for 
bills rendered on or after July 1,2014. 

(1) Availability of service. Available for sanitary sewer service. 

(2) Rates. (Customers with metered water supply) 

Service Charge 
Usage Charge 

$8.50 per month, or $17.00 bi-monthly 
$8.67 per 1,000 gallons 

(3) Minimum Charge. No minimum bill will be rendered for less than the 
following based on meter size: 

Meter Size 
5/8" 
1 112" 
2" 

Minimum Charge 
$25.84 per month, or $51.68 bi-monthly 
$12..;.78 per month, or $251.56 bi-monthly 
$201.02 per month, or $402.04 bi-monthly 

(4) Flat Rate Charge. Customers with non-metered water supply $25.84 per 
month, or $51.68 bi-monthly. 

(5) Tap fee. The following charges are to be made whenever the utility installs 
a new tap to serve an applicant. A tap fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) will be 
charged to customers applying for service before construction is completed adjacent 
to the customer's premises in connection with a certificate proceeding before the 
Commission. This pre-construction tap fee will be invalid after the completion of 
construction adjacent to an applicant's premises that is associated with a certificate 
proceeding. A tap fee of seven hundred dollars ($700.00) will be charged to all 
customers who apply for service outside of a certificate proceeding before the 
Commission for each new tap system. 

Page 52 of 132



(6) Delayed payment penalty. The above tariff is net. On all current usage billings 
not paid in full when due, ten percent (10%) will be added to the net current amount unpaid. 
This delayed payment penalty is not interest and is only to be collected once for each 
month where it is appropriate. 

(7) Disconnection charge. Whenever water service has been disconnected for non
payment of sewer bills in conjunction with a water service termination agreement 
with the Cheat View Public Service District, a disconnection fee of $15.00 shall be 
charged or in the event the delinquent sewer bill is collected by Cheat View Public 
Service District, an administrative fee of $15.00 shall be charged. 

Whenever water service, which has been previously disconnected or otherwise 
withheld for non-payment of a sewer bill in conjunction with a water service 
termination agreement with Cheat View Public Service District, is reconnected, a 
reconnection fee of $15.00 shall be charged. 

(8) Leak adjustment, $0.396 per 1,000 gallons is to be used when the bill reflects 
unusual consumption which can be attributed to eligible water leakage on the 
customer's side of the meter. This rate shall be applied to all such unusual consumption 
above the customer's historical average usage. 

(9) Returned Check Charge. A service charge of $20.00 will be imposed upon any 
customer whose check for payment of charges is returned by the bank due to insufficient 
funds. 

SCHEDULE NO.5 

(e) Applicable to the former Scou's Run Public Service District service area. 
Effective forty-five (45) days after enactment, or as soon thereafter as the same may be 

approved by the Public Service Commission of West Virginia; and upon acquisition of the 

Scott's Run Public Service District. 

(1) A vail abiJi ty of service. A vailable for sanitary sewer service. 

(2) Rates. (Customers with metered water supply) 
Service Charge $8.50 per month, or $17.00 bi-monthly 
Usage Charge $8.53 per 1,000 gallons 

(3) Flat Rate Charge. (Customer with non-metered water supply) 
Equivalent to 4,000 gallons water usage, $42.62 monthly, or 
Equi valent to 8,000 gallons water usage, $85.24 bi- monthly 

(4) Delayed payment penalty. The above sskedlile tariff is net. On all BSSeYRls 
current usage billings not paid in full when due, ten percent (10%) will be added to the net 
current amount unpaid. This delayed payment penalty is not interest and is tB lJe selleeted only to 
be collected once for each bill where it is appropriate. 

Page 53 of 132



(5) Tap fee. The following charges are to be made whenever the utility installs a new 
tap to serve an applicant. A tap fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) will be charged to customers 
applying for service before construction is completed adjacent to the customer's premises in 
connection with a certificate proceeding before the Commission. This pre-construction tap fee 
will be invalid after the completion of construction adjacent to an applicant's premises that is 
associated with a certificate proceeding. A tap fee of seven hundred dollars ($700.00) will be 
charged to all customers who apply for service outside of a certificate proceeding before the 
Commission for each new tap system. 

(6) DisconnectlReconnectl Administrative Fees. Whenever water service has been 
disconnected for non-payment of sewer bills in conjunction with a water service termination 
agreement with Pleasant Valley Public Service District, a disconnection fee of $20.00 shall be 
charged or in the event the delinquent sewer bill is collected by Pleasant Valley Public Service 
District, an administrative fee of $20.00 shall be charged. 

Whenever water service, which has been previously disconnected or otherwise withheld 
for non-payment of a sewer bill in conjunction with a water service termination agreement with 
Pleasant Valley Public Service District, is reconnected, a reconnection fee of $20.00 shall be 
charged. 

(7) Returned Check Charge. A service charge of $20.00 will be imposed upon any 
customer whose check for payment of charges is returned by the bank due to insufficient funds. 

(8) Leak adjustment. 0.396 per 1,000 gallons of water is to be used when a bill 
reflects unusual water consumption which can be attributed to eligible leakage on customer's side 
of meter. This rate shaH be applied to all consumption above the customer's historical average 
usage. 

The rates, charges and penalties provided herein shaH become effective July], 2014 or as soon 
thereafter as the same may be approved by the Public Service Commission of West 
Virginia. 

SECTION 2 - EFFECTIVE DATE 

The rates, charges and penalties provided herein shall become effective July I, 2014 or as 
soon thereafter as the same may be approved by the Public Service Commission of West Virginia. 

Page 54 of 132



SECTION 3 - SEVERABILITY; REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any clause, provision or section hereof 
shall be held void or unenforceable by the Public Service Commission of West Virginia or any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. Upon 
the effective date hereof, all ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts thereof in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflicts, hereby repealed, and to the extent 
that the provisions of this Ordinance do not touch upon the provisions of prior ordinances, 
resolutions, orders or parts thereof, the same shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4 - STATUTORY NOTICE AND PUBLIC HEARING 

Upon introduction hereof, the City Clerk shall cause to be published a copy of this 
Ordinance in the Dominion Post, a qualified newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Morgantown, and said notice shall state that this Ordinance has been introduced, and that any 
person interested may appear before the City Council on October 21,2014, at 7:00 p.m., which date 
is not less than five (5) days after the date of the publication of the Ordinance and notice, and 
present any comment or protest thereto, following which hearing, Council shall take such action as 
it shall deem proper. Copies of this Ordinance shall be available to the public for inspection at the 
office of the City Clerk. City of Morgantown. Morgantown, West Virginia. 

First Reading: 

Second Reading 
and Public Hearing: 

Filed: ____ ~ ______ _ 

Recorded: __________ _ 

MAYOR 

ClTYCLERK 

Page 55 of 132



AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AMENDING SECTIONS 923.06 
AND 923.13 OF ITS STREETS, UTD..ITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE, AS THE 
SAME APPLIES TO INDUSTRIAL WASTES DISCHARGED INTO THE SEWER 
SYSTEM AND ANCD..LARY SERVICES REGARDING INDUSTRIAL WASTES. 

The City of Morgantown hereby ordains that Sections 923.06 and 923.13 of its Streets, Utilities 
and Public Services Code is amended as follows (new matter underlined, deleted matter struck 
through): 

923.06 POLLUTANT LIMITATIONS. 

(a) The General Manager is authorized to establish local Limits pursuant to 40 CFR 
403.5(c) 

(b) Limitations for specific pollutants of concern that may cause pass through, 
inhibition or cause a degradation of sludge quality have been developed by the Board for 
specific pollutants of concern. The limits are derived from a mass basis and are allocated 
on a mass proportion basis to each individual industrial user. The Board also reserves the 
right to convert mass allocations to concentration based permit limitations and to impose 
limitations as monthly average, daily maximum, or instantaneous maximum limitations. 
The Board may derive daily maximum limits by applying a factor of approximately 1.5 to 
the monthly average limits. Specific limitations for any individual industrial user are 
delineated in the user's contribution permit. 

The following specific total pollutant mass limitations are available to industrial users. 
These total pollutant mass limitations are monthly average limits. Individual mass 
limitations are fractional amounts of the listed totals and are proportionally based on the 
individual industry's contributions. Pollutants not listed may be regulated by the 
industry'S specific wastewater contribution permit. 

Cadmium 0.11 lbsJday 
Total Chromium 0.90 Ibs./day 
Copper 2.30 Ibs.lday 
Cyanide 1.60 IbsJday 
Lead 1.10 lbs./day 
Mercury_ Q.Q+ 0.03 IbsJday 
~ielEel '1 ~ ...... IAn 

Silver 2.30 IbsJday 
Zinc 6.30 lbs./day 
Arsenic 0.28 Ibs.lday 

Page 56 of 132



(c) The General Manager may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs), by 
ordinance or in individual wastewater discharge permits to implement Local Limits and 
the requirements of Section 923.04. 

(Ord. 11-21. Passed 6-7-11.) 

923.13 FEES. 

(a) Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to provide for the recovery of costs from 
users of the City'S wastewater disposal system for the implementation of the programs 
established herein. 

(b) Charges and Fees. The City hereby adopts the following charges and fees 
associated with sampling, analysis, monitoring, inspections and surveillance procedure, 
which shall be payable to the Board: 

(1) For reimbursement of costs of setting up and operating the City's 
pretreatment program: Sfi5.00 $75.00 per man-hour 

(2) For monitoring, inspection and surveillance procedures: Sfi5.QQ $75.00 
per man-hour; 

(3) For reviewing accidentaVsJug discharge procedures and construction: 
${;S.OO $75.00 per man-hour; 

(4) For sampling and analysis, each individual permitted user shall reimburse 
the Board for the actual cost incurred; 

(5) For wastewater contribution permit: $500.00 (non-refundable); 

(6) For filing appeals to the Board: $300.00; 

(7) For consistent removal by the City of pollution not otherwise subject to 
Federal pretreatment standard: 

Ci = Va Vi = Bo Bi + So Si 

Ci - charge to industrial users per year. 

Page 57 of 132



Vo - average unit cost of transport and treatment chargeable to volume, in dollars 
per gallon 

Vi - volume of wastewater from industrial users, in gallons per year 

Bo - average unit cost of treatment, chargeable to Biochemical Oxygen Demand 
(BOD), in dollars per pound. 

Bi - weight of BOD from industrial users, in pounds per year. 

So - average cost of treatment (including sludge treatment) chargeable to total 
solids, in dollars per pound. 

Si - weight of total solids from industrial users in pounds per year. 

These fees relate solely to the matters covered by this article and are separate from all other fees 
chargeable by the City. 

(Ord. 11-21. Passed 6-7-11.) 

First Reading: _________ _ 
MAYOR 

Second Reading: _________ _ 
CITY CLERK 

Filed: 

Recorded: _ _________ _ 

Page 58 of 132



AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN AUTHORIZING A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN IT AND THE WV 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS, FOR 
INSTALLATION OF A BICYCLE LANE ALONG NORTHBOUND U.S. 19 
(MONONGAHELA BOULEVARD), BETWEEN EIGHTH STREET AND EVANSDALE 
DRIVE. 

The City of Morgantown hereby ordains that the Memorandum of Understanding, attached 
hereto, is approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the same by and on behalf of 
the City of Morgantown. 

FIRST READING: 
MAYOR 

ADOPTED: 

Fll...ED: 
CITY CLERK 

RECORDED: 

Page 59 of 132



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (M.O.V.), made and entered into this day 
of , 20_, by and between the City of Morgantown ("City"), the West 
Virginia Department of Transportation, Division of Highways ("DOH"), and the West Virginia 
University Board of Governors on behalf of West Virginia University ("WVU"), 

WHEREAS, City has requested permission from DOH to install within DOH's right-of-way along the 
existing paved shoulder of northbound US 19 (Monongahela Boulevard) a bicycle lane 
(hereinafter "Bicycle Lane"), generally between Eighth Street and Evansdale Drive, which 
installation is to include pavement markings and signage only, with no additional widening or 
paving anticipated by City; 

WHEREAS, DOH is agreeable to allowing Bicycle Lane to be installed by City, subject to the terms and 
conditions contained within this M.O.U.; 

WHEREAS, each party understands it must perform those certain duties described herein for the 
implementation of Bicycle Lane to be successful; and 

WHEREAS, this M.O.U. shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of each party hereto; 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree to the following: 

City Responsibilities regarding Bicycle Lane 

City agrees to be responsible for the administration of Bicycle Lane project, including but not 
limited to the advertising, letting, and award, as appropriate, of a construction contract, inspection 
of such project, and payment to contractor. City also agrees to maintain pavement markings and 
signing associated with Bicycle Lane, once installed. 

City will submit to DOH for review and approval appropriate plans for Bicycle Lane project, 
which plans shall include traffic control to be utilized by City during construction, and City will 
receive DOH approval of such plans, as they pertain to the State Highway System, prior to City 
advertising a construction contract. All signing and pavement markings utilized shall conform to 
the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). City will be responsible for ensuring 
that Bicycle Lane conforms appropriately with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, and for ensuring that installation of Bicycle Lane will not adversely affect WVU's existing 
Personal Rapid Transit structures adjacent to northbound US 19 between Eighth Street and 
Evansdale Drive. 

If determined by DOH to be necessary, City will conduct, and at a time and place to be 
determined, any public meeting concerning Bicycle Lane, and City will consider appropriately 
any public comments that may be timely received regarding Bicycle Lane project. 

City will finance the construction of the Bicycle Lane, subject to DOH'S financial participation, 
as set forth in DOH Responsibilities below. Upon completion of Bicycle Lane construction, City 
then shall submit to DOH a properly documented invoice for reimbursement of actual costs 
incurred by City for such construction, which costs may include payment to City's contractor and 
cost of inspection by City personnel of Bicycle Lane construction. DOH shall not be responsible 
for any costs associated with City personnel overhead or benefits, including insurance, leave, 
retirement, or similar costs. 

Page 60 of 132



DOH Responsibilities regarding Bicycle Lane 

DOH agrees to reimburse City for as much as fifty percent (50%) of City's project construction 
costs; however, it is understood that DOH's maximum reimbursement to City shall not exceed 
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00). 

WVU Responsibilities regarding Bicycle Lane 

WVU shall submit to DOH and to City for approval of each a "Maintenance of Traffic (M.O.T.)" 
Plan indicating the manner in which WVU will address and be responsible for the closure of the 
Bicycle Lane during certain pre-determined WVU events. Prior to approving said M.O.T., DOH 
shall have the right to require WVU to modify the same. The M.O.T. shall identify the specific 
events and dates for which WVU wishes to close the Bicycle Lane. On each anniversary of this 
MOU, WVU shall provide DOH and City a list of scheduled and anticipated events and dates 
requiring Bicycle Lane closure (the "Event List") during the subsequent twelve (12) months 
following the M.O.T.'s submission to DOH. Provided, that should additional events be scheduled 
subsequent to the submission of the annual Event List that require closure of the Bicycle Lane, 
WVU shall promptly notify DOH and City of such event no later than forty-eight (48) hours in 
advance of the event, at which time DOH will make every reasonable effort to assess and approve 
the closure in a timely manner. WVU or City shall not close Bicycle Lane at any time for any 
WVU event without first obtaining written DOH approval to do so prior to any WVU event. 

If determined by DOH to be appropriate, WVU will conduct, at a time and place to be 
determined, any public meeting concerning WVU's proposed temporary closure of Bicycle Lane 
for any event and WVU will consider appropriately any public comments that may be timely 
received regarding such Bicycle Lane closure. In the event that DOH determines that sufficient 
public opposition exists concerning the proposed temporary closure of Bicycle Lane, DOH shall 
notify WVU of such opposition and WVU shall not be permitted by DOH to close Bicycle Lane. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective names to be signed 
by their duly authorized officers. 

ATTEST: 

(signature) 

By: 

(printed name) 
Title: 

(printed title) 

2 

WEST VIRGINIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 
DIVISION OF IDGHW AYS 

(signature) 

By: Paul A. Mattox, Jr., P. E. 

Secretary of Transportation! 

Commissioner of Highways 

Page 61 of 132



ATTEST: 

(siglla lure) 

By: 
(printed name) 

Tille: 
(printed title) 

ATTEST: 

(signature) 

By: 
(printed name) 

Title: 
(printed title) 

3 

CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

(signature) 

By: 

Us: 

(printed name) 

Mayor 

(signature) 

By: 
(printed name) 

Its: City Manager 

WEST VIRGINIA UNIVERSITY BOARD 
OF GOVERNORS ON BEHALF OF WEST 
VIRGINIA UNIVERISITY 

(signature) 

By: 
(printed name) 

It: 
(printed title) 

(To be executed in tripHcate) 

Djstribution: Master File 
City 
WVU 

Page 62 of 132



Resolution Submitting TIF Application 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the City of Morgantown (the "City") is authorized by the West Virginia 
Tax Increment Financing Act, Chapter 7, Article 11 B of the Code of West Virginia 1931, as 
amended (the "Act"), to create development and redevelopment districts, cause project plans to 
be prepared, to approve project plans, issue tax increment financing obligations and to take such 
other actions necessary or desirable to facilitate the orderly development and economic stability 
of the City, all as more fully set forth in the Act; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to create and establish a redevelopment district to be 
known and designated as the "City of Morgantown Redevelopment District No.4" (the "TIF 
District"), and to approve a redevelopment project plan, specifically being the acquisition, 
construction and equipping of road, intersection and public property improvements (including 
utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and right-of
way acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and incidental costs 
and expenses relating to the construction and installation of such public infrastructure 
improvements and demolition projects, and other related public infrastructure, to be known and 
designated as "Willey-Spruce-Brockway Redevelopment Project Plan No.1" (the "Project 
Plan"), all in order to facilitate the issuance of tax increment financing obligations to finance the 
costs of planning, acquiring, constructing and equipping the Project Plan, being necessary public 
infrastructure improvements within the TIF District; 

WHEREAS, the City did, on October 21, 2014, following proper notice thereof, hold a 
public hearing with respect to the Tax Increment Financing Application relating to the creation 
of the TIF District and proposing the Project Plan (the "Application") wherein interested parties 
were afforded a reasonable opportunity to express their views on the proposed creation of the 
TIF District and its proposed boundaries and the proposed approval of the Project Plan; 

WHEREAS, the City has, following such public hearing, found and determined that the 
approval of the Application will benefit the City and its residents by facilitating the orderly 
development and economic stability of the City, and that development therein will encourage 
investing in job-producing, private development and expand the public tax base of the City, that 
future capital improvements will result in the increase in the value of property located in the TIP 
District and will encourage increased employment and business activity within such area and 
will serve a public purpose of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City now desires to submit the Application to the West Virginia 
Development Office for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN, AS FOLLOWS: 

Page 63 of 132



1. It is hereby found and determined following the public hearing thereon that the 
Application is approved and is in form and substance suitable for submission to the West 
Virginia Development Office for its consideration of approval. 

2. It is hereby found and determined that the projects described in the Project Plan 
are not reasonably expected to occur without the use of tax increment financing. 

3. It is hereby found and determined that the development as set forth in the 
Application will not be solely used for development of commercial businesses that will unfairly 
compete in the local economy and that development or redevelopment is in the public interest 
because it will (i) discourage commerce, industry or manufacturing from moving their operating 
to another state; (ii) result in increased employment in the county; or (iii) result in preservation or 
enhancement of the tax base of the City. 

4. It is hereby authorized and ordered that the City Manager cause the Application 
and all other necessary documentation to be submitted to the West Virginia Development Office, 
together with a request for approval thereof. 

5. The Mayor, City Manager and other officials and employees of the City are 
hereby authorized and directed to take such actions as they shall deem appropriate in facilitating 
the approval ofthe Application. 

6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

Page 64 of 132



Adopted this 21st day of October, 2014. 

APPROVED: 

By: __________ _ 

Its City Attorney 

6617116 (19432.8) 

CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: ___ _______ _ 

Its City Manager 

By: __________ _ 

Its Mayor 

Page 65 of 132



CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, being the duly <}ualified, elected and acting Clerk of the City of 
Morgantown, does hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Morgantown at a regular meeting duly held, pursuant to proper notice 
thereof, on October 21, 2014, a quorum being present and acting throughout, and which 
Resolution has not been modified, amended or revoked and is a true, correct and complete copy 
thereof as of this 21st day of October, 2014. 

By: __________ _ 
City Clerk 

Page 66 of 132



West Virginia 

Tax Increment Financing Application 

City of Morgantown 

Redevelopment District No.4 

Willey-Sprnce-Brockway 

Redevelopment Project Plan No.1 

October 9, 2014 

Page 67 of 132



Table of Contents 

Section I: Application 

A: Applicant Information 
B: Authorized Representative of Applicant 
C: Redevelopment District 

Section 11: Project Information 

A: Project Description 
B: lob Creation Estimates 
C: Public Improvements 
D: Estimated Breakdown of Project Costs 
E· Financing 
F: Alternate Funding 
G: Tax Increment Financing ("TJF") Obligations 

Section III: Attachments 

Attachment 1: Map showing the existing uses and conditions of the real property in the project area 
or district. 

Attachment 2: 

Attachment 3: 

Attachment 4: 

Attachment 5: 

Attachment 6: 
Attachment 7: 

Attachment 8: 

Attachment 9: 

Attachment 1 0: 
Attachment I 1 : 
Attachment 12: 

Attachment 13: 

Attachment 14: 

A map showing proposed improvements and uses of the land in the project area or 
district and the boundaries of the property within the development or redevelopment 
project area or district whose increment will be used for this project. 
A resolution, order or ordinance finding the project is not reasonably expected to 
occur without the use of tax increment financing. 
Copy of certification by the county assessor of the base assessed value of the 
property whose increment will be used for this project. 
If the current assessed value is different from the base assessed value, a copy of the 
certification by the county assessor of the current assessed value of the property in 
the development or redevelopment area or district that will be used to help support 
TIF obligations for this project. 
Verification and results of the public hearings. 
Analysis of costs to other communities or areas in West Virginia as a result of this 
development. 
Other information including the effect on the economy that may be necessary or 
useful to determine whether the project is financially feasible. 
A memorandum of understanding ("MOU") between the developer and the county or 
municipality about how the competitive bidding process will be conducted. 
A relocation plan for any displaced persons, businesses or organizations. 
Proposed changes to zoning ordinances, if any. 
Appropriate cross-references to any master plan, map, building codes, and municipal 
ordinance or county orders affected by the project. 
Notice of Public Hearing provided to West Virginia Development Office and all 
other local levying bodies within the boundaries of the proposed TIF district. 
The Monongalia County Board of Education, the County Commission of Monongalia 
County and the West Virginia Development Office may request further information, 
provide guidance or make other formal requests. Any such communications are 
included with this application. 

Page 68 of 132



Attachment 15: If the project was proposed by an entity other than the county or municipality 
submit'ling this application, the following, as applicab le, must also be submitted : (a) 
Certificate of Existence; (b) Certificate of Workers' Compensation Insurance 
Covcrage; (c) Certifi cate of Good Stand ing from Swre Tax Department; ~lI1d Cd) a 
certificate from the sheriff of thc county in which the district is located regarding local 
propel1y tax StlltuS. 

Attachment 16: Analys is showing the fi scal impact on encll local levying body. The analys is will 
consider the cosL~ incurred by Ihe loca l levy ing bodies find how those costs will be 
offselfl'unded. Possible costs include the effect on schoo ls, publ ic serv ices, utilities, 
etc. 

Auachm ent 17: A letter from a bond counsel andlor financ ial underwriter slaling thai the proposed 
project could support tax increm ent fi nancing bonds or other obligations and the 
terms and conditions of such offe rin g. 

Page 69 of 132



WEST VIRGINIA 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

SECTION I. APPLICATION 

A. API)LlCANT INFORMATION 

I. County or Municipality: 

2. Contact Person/Title: 

3. Address: 

4. Telephone Number: 
Fax Number: 
E-Mail Address 

5. Name of proposed development 
or redevelopment Project: 

City of Morgantown, West Virginia (the "City") 

Mr. JeffMikorski, City Manager 

City Hall 
389 Spruce Street, Third Floor 
Morgantown, WV 26505 

(304) 284-7405 
(304) 284-7430 
jmikorski@cityofmorgantown.org 

Willey-Spruce-Brockway Redevelopment Project Plan No.1 

B, ALTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF APPLICANT 

lfproject was originally proposed by an entity other than the county or municipality listed above, please 
provide a contact name and information for someone who can answer questions about the project 
proposal: 

1. Name/Title: 

2. Company Name: 

3. Address: 

4. Telephone Number: 
Fax Number: 
Email Address: 

Mr. JeffMikorski, City Manager 

City of MOI'gantown, West Virginia 

City Hall 
389 Spruce Street, Third Floor 
Morgantown, WV 26505 

(304) 284-7405 
(304) 284-7430 
j mikorski@cityofmorgantown.org 

Co" I REDEVELOPMli:I\T DISTRICT 

Name of Redevelopment District: 

Base Assessed Value: 

City of Morgantown Redevelopment District No.4 (the "TIF 
District"). 
A resolution approved by the City on October 7, 2014, 
establishing the public hearing date and other matters in 
connection with the TIF District is provided in Attachment 3. 

$ • The assessed value of the taxable property, 
excluding motor vehicles, within the TIF District as of July 1, 
2013, as provided by the Monongalia County Assessor (the 
"Base Assessed Value") is provided in Attachment 4. 

Page 70 of 132



SECTION II. PROJECT INFORMATION 

A. DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Include a description of how the project fits with the uverall development plans Jor the development or 
redevelopment project area or district or the overall development plans oj the municipality. county or 
region. 

The TIF District 

The City proposes the creation of the TIF District to be designated as the "City of Morgantown 
Redevelopment District No.4." The proposed TIF District includes parcels beginning at the intersection 
of Willey Street and Oak Street, traveling south along Willey Street to Spruce Street, traveling along 
Spruce Street to Walnut Street to Brockway Avenue, traveling along Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania 
Avenue, traveling north to Richwood Avenue, traveling along Richwood to Union Street, traveling along 
Union Street to Battelle Street to Oak Street. A map of the proposed TIF District and listing of included 
parcels of real property, as identificd by Tax Map and Parcel Number, is provided in Attachment 2. The 
TIF District is being created by the City for the purpose of improving public infrastructure within the 
district to include right-of-way improvements along Willey Street, Spruce Street, Walnut Street, 
Brockway Avenue, Forest Avenue, and other streets and public property in the TIF District. 

The TIF Project 

Thc City proposes to develop/construct/install certain projects (the "TIF Projects") within the TIF 
District, which TIF Projects may be acquired and constructed in several phases. The TIF Projects include 
the following public improvements: road, intersection, and public property improvements (including 
utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and right-of-way 
acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and incidental costs and expenses 
relating to the construction and installation of such public infrastructure improvements and demolition 
projects, and other related public infrastructure, to be known and designated as "Willey-Spruce-Brockway 
Redevelopment Project Plan No.1" (the "Project Plan"), all in order to facilitate the issuance of tax 
increment financing obligations to finance the costs of planning, acquiring, constructing and equipping 
the Project Plan, being necessary public infrastructure improvements within the TIF District, and other 
related public infrastructure. 

Tax Increment Financing Obligations 

To finance the costs of the TIF Projects, the City proposes to use tax increment funds to finance the costs 
ofthe TIF Projects, including architectural, engineering, legal and other professional fees and expenses on 
a pay-as-you-go basis and/or from proceeds of tax increment revenue bonds or other obligations issued by 
the City (the "TIF Obligations"), from time to time, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $12,000,000, 
with maturities not to exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF District. Such obligations 
may be issued from time to time in one or more series. Proceeds of the TIF Obligations are generally 
planned to be used to (i) finance a portion of the costs of the TIF Projects, including architectural, 
engineering, legal and other professional fees and expenses; (ii) fund reserves for the TIF Obligations; 
(iii) fund capitalized interest on the TIF Obligations, and (iv) pay costs of issuance of the TIF Obligations 
and related costs. To the extent that tax increment funds are available, all or portions of the TIF Projects 
may be financed directly with such tax increment funds. See Section H.E for more detailed Financing 
information and Section H.G for additional information on the proposed TIF Obligations. 

Page 71 of 132



D(l : ESTIMATES 

Projected increase in value of the taxable property in the development or redevelopment di~tricl upon 
succes.sful completion of the project plan: 

The estimated increase in the taxable value of property in the TIF District is provided in the table below. 
The Estimated Appraised Value is provided in greater detail in the "CALCULATION OF PROJECTED 
NET PROPERTY TAX INCREMENT" analysis attached to Section II.G - Tax Increment Financing 
Obligations. 

Projected Increase in Appraised Values of Taxable Property in the TIF District ($) 

Tax Vellr ClIlSS II Class IV '" Tutal 
2015 0 5,000,000 5,000,000 
2016 0 17,500,000 17,500,000 
2017 0 45,000,000 45,000,000 
2018 0 80,000,000 80,000,000 
2019 0 80,800,000 80,000,000 
2020 0 81,608,000 81,608,000 
2021 0 82,424,080 82,424,080 
2022 0 83,248,321 83,248,321 
2023 0 84,080,804 84,080,804 
2024 0 84,921,612 84,921,612 
2025 0 85,770,828 85,770,828 
2026 0 86,628,536 86,628,536 
2027 0 87,494,822 87,494,822 
2028 0 88,369,770 88,369,770 
2029 0 89,253,468 89,253,468 
2030 0 90,146,002 90,146,002 
2031 0 91,047,462 91,047,462 
2032 0 91,957,937 91,957,937 
2033 0 92,877,516 92,877,516 
2034 0 93,806,292 93,806,292 
2035 0 94,744,355 94,744,355 
2036 0 95,691,798 95,691,798 
2037 0 96,648,716 96,648,716 
2038 0 97,615,203 97,615,203 
2039 0 98,591,355 98,591,355 
2040 0 99,577,269 99,577,269 
2041 0 100,573,041 100,573,041 
2042 0 101,578,772 101,578,772 
2043 0 102,594,560 102,594,560 

·Assumes annual intlation rate of 1.0% for Class IV property values beginning Tax Year 2019. Projected 
increase in Taxable Assessed Values in District is based on the following preliminary development estimates: 

Tax Year A22raised ($) Class Descri2tion of Develo2ment 

2015 5,000,000 IV Estimated Increase from existing development 
2016 12,500,000 IV Private student housing project # 1 
2017 27,500,000 IV Private student housing project #2 

2018 20,000,000 IV Private student housing project #3 
2018 15,000,000 IV Speculative project development 
Total 80,000,000 

Page 72 of 132



B 2): ESTIMATES 

Number of jobs to be created by this project in the project area or district. Estimafedjobs are asfallows: 

Estimated Job Creation within the TIF District 

Job Category Professional Clerical! Admin Ski1\ed Semi-skilled Unskilled 

Wages $7S-$lS0K $2S-$7SK $40-$7SK $20-$40K $IS-$20K 

Construction jobs: All City projects will be either constructed by full-time and/or part-time City 
employees or bid according to Davis-Bacon wages in which prevailing wage rate jobs will be utilized 
for laborers, equipment operators, carpenters, concrete finishers, truck drivers, etc. These jobs will 
have reasonable expectations of producing retaining and/or contributing to 100 jobs within the classes 
previously mentioned. 

Benefits: The City views these previously mentioned projects as a tool which can be implemented 
to cease the spread of slum and blight in which will correlate into increasing property values of its 
property owners by 15% over the next thirty (30) years and by improving its citizens' quality of life. 
The most important aspect the city can control is its core infrastructure. 

The TIF Projects will be funded from a combination of tax increment funds and the proceeds of the 
TIF Obligations. These constitute the TIF Projects in the Project Plan and will continue to generate 
jobs both during and after the revitalization project is complete. 

Page 73 of 132



0 ;' '.. , PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

The TIF Projects are expected to include the following public improvements: road, intersection and public 
propeJ1y improvements (including utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, 
landscaping, land and right-of-way acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site 
preparation, and incidental costs and expenses relating to the construction and installation of such public 
infrastructure improvements and demolition projects, and other related public infrastructure. 

Public Improvements'·' Estimated Total ($) 

Willey Street, Spruce Street, Walnut Street, Brockway Avenue, Deckers 
Creek Boulevard, Richwood Avenue and Forest Street and other street right 
of way improvements 

Lighting improvements within the TIF District 

Public property improvements along Spruce Street 

Utility infrastructure upgrades and improvements 

TOTAL 

* Please refer to Attachment 2 for a specific identification of proposed location of public improvements. 

4,000,000 

750,000 

250,000 

2,000,000 

7,000,000 

Page 74 of 132



D. ESTIMATED BREAKDOWN OF PRO.JECT COSTS* 

The Estimated Breakdown of Project Costs below is anticipated to be fully financed from Pay-As-You
Go funds from the TIF Fund (as hereinafter defined) and tax increment revenue bonds ("TIF 
Obligations"). See Section H.G - Tax Increment Financing Obligations and Section II.E - Financing 
for more detailed information. 

I TOTAL* Proposed Financing Method 

1. Capital Costs $ 

2 Financing Costs $ 386,400 TIF Obligations 

3. Professional Services $ 

4. Land $ 

5. Relocation Costs $ 

6. Environmental Impact Studies $ 

7. Public Information $ 

8. Construction of Public Works $ 7,000,000 TIF Obligations 

9. Costs of the sale/lease of City $ 
property that results in a loss to City 

10. Obligations Capitalized Interest $ 1,104,000 TIF Obligations 

11. Obligations Reserve Funds $ 709,600 TIF Obligations 

Total Project Costs: $ 9,200,000 

"Notes to Items I through II : 

2) Estimated Financing Costs for the Obligations as provided in Section II.G 

8) See Section J1.C for estimated breakdown of Project costs 

10) Estimated Capitalized Interest on the Obligations as provided in Section lI.G 

11) Estilllated Reserve Funds for tile Obligations as provided in Seclion JI.G 

Page 75 of 132



E. FINANCING 

Estimated SOUI"CeS, Amounts, Rate and Term (1) 

fa finance the TIF Projects, the City proposes to use tax increment funds to finance the costs of the 
TIF Projects, including architectural, engineering, legal and other professional fees and expenses on 
a pay-as-you-go basis and/or from proceeds of thc TIF Obligations in an aggregate amount not to 
exceed $12,000,000, with maturities not to exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF 
District. TIF Obligations may be issued from time to time in one or more series. 

The City anticipates funding a portion or all of the TIF Projects on a "pay-as-you-go" basis until TIF 
Obligations are issued. 

Sources Amount Interest Maturity Anticipated Stlltus 
" . Rate PlIyorr 

Series 2015 TIF 
Obligations 

Total 

$9,200,000 

$9,200,000 

6.00% 2044 2038 (2) Public Hearing on 
Project and District 

scheduled. 

(I) Amounts and interest rates are preliminary and subject to change based on market conditions at the time of sale of the TIF Obligations. 

(2) The TIF Obligations are planned to be issued with a final maturity in 2044. To the extent Excess funds (as defined in Section JI.G) are used 
to redeem outstanding obligations, it is projected that the TIF Obligations could payoff as early as 2038. 

Page 76 of 132



What alternate sources offunding have been explored? Why are they unavailable for this project? 

The City has made evel), attempt to finance the TIF Projects using alternate sources of funding, 
specifically state and federal grants and loans. Over the past several years, the City has maximized 
available state and federal grant and loan programs and will continue to seck such sources of funding to 
compliment the use of tax increment funds to finance the TIF Projects. Additionally, the City has 
expended a considerable amount of its general revenue budget to pay for such public improvement 
projects over the past several years (See Attachment 8, TAB A.). However, due to the limited 
availability and annual amounts of such funding sources, the City is not capable of funding the TIF 
Projects without the use of tax increment funds as proposed in this application. 

TIF funding is the last resort for completing the vital infrastructure projects within the city because it is 
not efficient to wait for other sources of funding. The TIF money will allow for these projects to be 
completed simultaneously, which is necessary for these infrastructure improvements and to achieve the 
greatest economic impact for the City and surrounding area. Simultaneous project completion is the most 
efficient and inexpensive process for completion of road and streetscape improvements. 

Page 77 of 132



G. . TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS 

If TIF obligations are expected to be issued, thejollowing information must also be included: 

1. Amount ofTIF indebtedness that may be incurred: Approximately $9,200,000 

2. Other revenues to be used to finance the debt (other than tax increments in the TIF Fund): None 

3. Other monies to be deposited in TIF Fundfor the development project area or district: None 

4. If less than the full tax increment is to be used for debt service payments or directly for TIF Project 
costs and expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis, explain how the excess will be used or distributed: 

Any principal and interest on TIF Obligations issued by the City shall be payable from the tax 
increment financing fund ("TIF Fund") established for the TIF District. Any revenucs in the TIF 
Fund that are not: (i) used for the scheduled payment of the principal of and interest on TIF 
Obligations, (ii) used for the payment of accrued but unpaid debt service due to insufficient TIP 
funds to make prior debt service payments, (iii) held in reserve funds established by the issuance 
of TIF Obligations, (iv) used for annual expenses for servicing the TIF Obligations, or (v) used 
for approved TIP Project costs within the TIF District on a pay-as-you-go basis, shall be deemed 
"excess funds" at the end of each fiscal year. 

"Excess funds" may be used for (i) the scheduled payment of the principal of and interest on 
additional TIF Obligations, (ii) payment of accrued but unpaid debt service due to insufficient 
TIF funds to make prior debt service payments on additional TIF Obligations, (iii) funding 
reserve funds established by the issuance of additional TIF Obligations, (iv) payment of annual 
expenses for servicing additional TIF Obligations, (v) funding for additional TIF Projects in the 
TIF District approved in a Project Plan or Project Plans pursuant to the Act, (vi) distribution into 
current funds of the appropriate levying bodies, (vii) retention of funds for approved TIF 
Projects, and/or (viii) all other purposes for which TIF Fund monies may be expended pursuant 
to the Act. To the extent that Excess Funds are not used for any of the purposes set forth in this 
paragraph, such excess funds shall be used for early repayment of outstanding TIF Obligations in 
accordance with the financing terms therefore. 

5. Termsfor early repayment of the TIF Obligations: 

The City plans to issue TIF Obligations in one or more series with an initial final maturity 30 
years from the date of the creation of the TIF District. The City anticipates that the TIF 
Obligations would be callable within 10 years or less from the date of issuance. Upon payment 
in full of the outstanding principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, for the TIF 
Obligations and all administrative or annual expenses related to the TIF Obligations and/or the 
TIF District, the City shall dissolve the TIF District; provided, however, that if the City has not 
completed all of the approved TIF Projects set fOl1h in this application or has approved a new 
Project Plan or Project Plans subsequent to the issuance of the TIF Obligations, the TIF District 
shall not be dissolved prior to its statutorily mandated termination until the obligations created all 
the TIF Fund by such Project Plan or Project Plans have been fulfilled. 

6. Attach a letter from a bond counsel and/or finanCial underwriter stating that the proposed project 
could support tax increment financing bonds or other obligations and the terms and conditions of 
such offering. 

Page 78 of 132



Investment Banker/Placement Agent Piper Jarrray & Co. 
Add ress: 405 Capito l Street, Suite 61 3, Charleston, WV 2530 I 
Telephone, (3 04) 343-7 1 0 I or (304)343-71 02 

A relief prepurcd by Piper Jaffray & Co., Illvestment 13anker/I'lacement Agent for the TIF Project', is 
provided in Attachment 17 stating that the TIF Project cou ld support the issuance ofTI F Obligations 
within the limitations lind su bjcct to the assum ptions stated therein. Bond counsel has nOI yet been 
engaged by the City, but upon engagement of bond counsel, a Jeller from bond counsel will be 
attached 10 Attacbme nt 17. 

6502100 

Page 79 of 132



Section II.G • TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

SOURCES ANI) USES OF f UNDS 

('ity of MorgtltllOWlI (We~ Virginia) 
Ta~ Illcrclll(:!Ill~cvctluC Uonds, Series 20 15 

(Redevdoplllcnl District No.4) 

Notes: 

Sources: 

Daled Dale 
Delivery DHlc 

Ikl11d I'rocecds: 
l'orAIllOUIll 

Uses: 

Projt:el Fund Deposu: 
I'rojecll'uod 

Othcr I'lInd Oc:JlOsilS: 
Rcserw Fund 
Cllpitnlil.ed tnle~SI Fund 

Delivel'y Dale Expenses: 
Cost or Issuance 

Aliligul1:5 hen:inllTe preliminary, subject 10 dlilngc. 
Reserve Fund equal to the maximum annual debt sct'Yice 011 the 1'\o1\(ls. 
Capit.a lil.ed Imerest 011 the IJonds to JUlie 1,2011. 
E.Uimbu:d Cost of Issuance. 

tXt J, 21114 12:26 pm I'rcpm-cd by /'iper JafTl1ly & Co. 

06/01120 15 
0610 112015 

9,200,000.00 

9,200.000.00 

7,000,000.00 

386,400.00 

9,200,000.00 

Page 1 

(TII':I3ROCKWA Y ·API') 

Page 80 of 132



Section II.G • T1F Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

BOND PRICING 

City ofMorg:llllown (Wcsl Virgillia) 
TII ~ InCfCIIICll l ){cvcnue Bonds, Series 2015 

(RedClfclopment Di ~t rict No.4) 

Notes: 

Ilond Component 
Maturity 

Date 

06I01f2044 

Oatctl [)p\c 
Delivcry DHte 
I:;rst COUJ"IOII 

I'ar Amourn 
Originollssue Disrount 

I'roductioll 
Underwriter's Discount 

f'urciutSC "nce 
Accnll:d Interest 

Netl'meeeds 

All ligures herein are preliminlll')', subject to cflnllge. 
St:,I!.-d i"lcrest rate i~ for planning pt'l'J1'OIIC~ only. 

Oct 3,2014 12:26 pm rrePllred by f>;per Jam'lI)' &. Co. 

Amount Ihtc Yield 

9.200.000 6.0_ 6.000% 

9,200,000 

0610 1f2015 
OtllO lnO l5 
1210112015 

9,200,000.00 

9.200,000.00 100.000000% 

9,200,000.00 100.000000% 

9,200.000.00 

Page 2 

I'nce 

100.000 

(Tfl':BROCKWA Y·Af>P) 

Page 81 of 132



Section II.G . TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE Page 3 

DEBT SERVICE· WITHOUT REDEMPTION OF llONDS 

City ofMorgantowll (West Virginia) 
Tax IncremenlRevcnuc Bonds, Series 2015 

(Redevelopment District No.4) 

Dated Date 06/0112015 
Delivery Date 06/0112015 

Annual 
Period Debt Debt 
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Servicc Service 

12/0112015 276,000 276,000 
06/0112016 276,000 276,000 552,000 
12/0112016 276,000 276,000 
06/0112017 276,000 276,000 552,000 
12/0112017 276,000 276,000 
06/0112018 276,000 276,000 552,000 
12/0112018 276,000 276,000 
06/0112019 155,000 6.000% 276,000 431,000 707,000 
12/01/2019 271,350 271,350 
06/0112020 165,000 6.000% 271,350 436,350 707,700 
12/0112020 266,400 266,400 
06/0112021 175,000 6.000% 266,400 441,400 707,800 
12/0112021 261,150 261,150 
06/0112022 185,000 6.000% 261,150 446,150 707,300 
12/0112022 255,600 255,600 
06/0112023 195,000 6.000% 255,600 450,600 706,200 
12/0112023 249,750 249,750 
06/0112024 210,000 6.000% 249,750 459,750 709,500 
12/0112024 243,450 243,450 
06/0112025 220,000 6.000% 243,450 463,450 706,900 
12/0112025 236,850 236,850 
06/0112026 235,000 6.000% 236,850 471,850 708,700 
12/0112026 229,800 229,800 
06/0112027 250,000 6.000% 229,800 479,800 709,600 
12/0112027 222,300 222,300 
06/01/2028 260,000 6.000% 222,300 482,300 704,600 
12/0112028 214,500 214,500 
06/0112029 280,000 6.000% 214,500 494,500 709,000 
12/01/2029 206,100 206,100 
06/01/2030 295,000 6.000% 206,100 501,100 707,200 
12/01/2030 197,250 197,250 
06/01/2031 315,000 6.000% 197,250 512,250 709,500 
12/01/2031 187,800 187,800 
06/0112032 330,000 6.000% 187,800 517,800 705,600 
12/0112032 177,900 177,900 
06/0112033 350,000 6.000% 177,900 527,900 705,800 
12/0112033 167,400 167,400 
06/0112034 370,000 6.000% 167,400 537,400 704,800 
12/0112034 156,300 156,300 
06/0112035 395,000 6.000% 156,300 551,300 707,600 
12/0112035 144,450 144,450 
06/0112036 420,000 6.000% 144,450 564,450 708,900 
12/0112036 131,850 131,850 
06/0112037 445,000 6.000% 131,850 576,850 708,700 
12/0112037 118,500 118,500 
06/01/2038 470,000 6.000% 118,500 588,500 707,000 
12/0112038 104,400 104,400 
06/01/2039 500,000 6.000% 104,400 604,400 708,800 
12/0112039 89,400 89,400 

Oct 3,2014 12:26 pm Prepared by Piper Jaffray & Co. (TIF:BROCKWA Y .APP) 

Page 82 of 132



Soctio n ILG - TIF Obligatio ns 

Period 
Ending 

06/()112040 
1210 112040 
0610 112041 
1210112041 
06/0112042 
1210 112042 
0610112043 
1210 112043 
0610 112044 

NOles: 

PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

DEIlT SERVICE - WrnlOUT REDEMI'TION OF IJONI)S 

Cily ot'MorgalUOWIl (West Villliniu) 
Tllx 1nr.ttmcnt l{cvcnllC Uonds. Series 2015 

(RedevelopUlent [)i~ t r iet Nn. 4) 

Il<.< 
Principal Coupon IllIen:st Scnoioe 

530.000 6.000% 89.400 619.400 
73,500 73,500 

560,000 6.000% 73,500 633,500 
56,700 56,700 

5')5,000 6.000% 56,700 651,700 
38,1150 38,850 

630,000 6.000% 38,850 668.850 
19.950 19,950 

665,000 6.0000.4 19,950 684.9.5{) 

9,200,000 10,851,000 20.051,000 

Alllisurcs herein arc preliminary, subjcello change. 
Slm~-d interest role is for planning purposes only. 

O¢l 3, 20 14 12:26 pm ['I"\:Il0rcd by Piper Joffroy &. Co. 

Page 4 

Annual 

"'~ Service 

708.800 

707,000 

708,400 

707,700 

704,900 

20,051 ,000 

(TIF:IJROCKWA Y-AI'I» 

Page 83 of 132



Section (loG - TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE Page 5 

NET DEBT SERVICE - WITHOUT REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

City of Morgantown (West Virginia) 
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 

(Redevelopment District No.4) 

Capitalized 
Period Total Interest Net Annual 
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Fund Debt Service Net DIS 

12!OIl2015 276,000 276,000 276,000 
06/0112016 276,000 276,000 276,000 
l2/0Il2016 276,000 276,000 276,000 
06/0112017 276,000 276,000 276,000 
12/0112017 276,000 276,000 276,000 
06/0112018 276,000 276,000 276,000 552,000 
12/0112018 276,000 276,000 276.000 
06/0112019 155.000 6.000% 276,000 431,000 431,000 707,000 
12/01/2019 271,350 271,350 271,350 
06/0112020 165,000 6.000% 271,350 436,350 436,350 707,700 
12/0112020 266,400 266,400 266,400 
06/0112021 175,000 6.000% 266,400 441,400 441,400 707,800 

12/01/2021 261,150 261,150 261.150 

06/01/2022 185,000 6.000% 261,150 446,150 446,150 707,300 

12/0112022 255,600 255,600 255,600 

06/0112023 195,000 6.000% 255,600 450,600 450,600 706,200 
12/0112023 249,750 249,750 249,750 
06/01/2024 210,000 6.000% 249,750 459,750 459,750 709.500 
12101/2024 243,450 243,450 243,450 

06/0112025 220,000 6.000% 243,450 463,450 463,450 706.900 

1210112025 236,850 236,850 236,850 
06/0112026 235,000 6.000% 236.850 471,850 471,850 708,700 

12/0112026 229,800 229,800 229,800 
06/01/2027 250.000 6.000% 229,800 479,800 479,800 709.600 
12/01/2027 222.300 222,300 222,300 
06/01/2028 260,000 6.000% 222,300 482,300 482,300 704,600 

12/0112028 214,500 214,500 214,500 
06/01/2029 280,000 6.000% 214,500 494,500 494,500 709,000 
12/0112029 206.100 206,100 206,100 
06/0112030 295,000 6.000% 206,100 501,100 501,100 707,200 
12/01/2030 197,250 197,250 197,250 
06/0112031 315,000 6.000% 197,250 512,250 512,250 709.500 
12/01/2031 187.800 187,800 187,800 
06/0112032 330,000 6.000% 187,800 517,800 517,800 705,600 
12/01/2032 177,900 177,900 177,900 
06/01/2033 350,000 6.000% 177,900 527,900 527.900 705,800 

Oct 3,2014 12:26 pm Prepared by Piper Jaffray & Co. (TIF:BROCKW A Y-APP) 

Page 84 of 132



Section II.G - TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

NET DEBT SERVICE - WITHOUT REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Period 
Ending Principal 

12/0112033 
06/01/2034 370,000 
12/0112034 
06/0112035 395,000 
12/0112035 
06/0112036 420,000 
12/01/2036 
06/0112037 445,000 
12/0112037 
06/0112038 470,000 
1210112038 
06/0112039 500,000 
12/0112039 
06/0112040 530,000 
12/01/2040 
06/0112041 560,000 
12/0112041 
06/01/2042 595,000 
12/0112042 
06/0112043 630,000 
12101/2043 
06/0112044 665,000 

9,200,000 

Notes: 
All figures herein are preliminary, subject to change. 
Capitalized Interest on the Bonds to June 1, 2017. 

Coupon 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

6.000% 

Reserve Fund prinicipal used to make final payment on the Bonds. 

Oct 3,2014 12:26 pm Prepared by Piper Jaffray & Co. 

City of Morganto\\TI (West Virginia) 
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds. Series 2015 

(Redevelopment District No.4) 

Capitalized 
Total Interest 

Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Fund 

167,400 167,400 
167,400 537,400 
156,300 156,300 
156,300 551,300 
144,450 144,450 
144,450 564,450 
131,850 131,850 
131,850 576,850 
118,500 118,500 
118,500 588,500 
104,400 104,400 
104,400 604,400 
89,400 89,400 
89,400 619,400 
73,500 73,500 
73,500 633,500 
56,700 56,700 
56,700 651,700 
38,850 38,850 
38,850 668,850 
19,950 19,950 
19,950 684,950 709,600 

10,851,000 20,051,000 709,600 1,104,000 

Page 6 

Net Annual 
Debt Service NctDfS 

167,400 
537.400 704,800 
156,300 
551300 707,600 
144,450 
564.450 708,900 
131,850 
576,850 708.700 
118500 
588500 707.000 
104,400 
604,400 708,800 

89,400 
619,400 708,800 
73500 

633,500 707,000 
56,700 

651,700 708,400 
38,850 

668.850 707,700 
19,950 

-24,650 -4,700 

18,237,400 18,237,400 

(TIF:BROCKWAY-APP) 

Page 85 of 132



Section II.G - TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE Page7 

BOND SOLUTION - WITH NIANDATORY REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

City of Morgantown (West Virginia) 
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 

(Redevelopment District No.4) 

Projected Capitalized ClDIlulative Debt 
Period Projected Principal+ Interest & Net Projected Projected Projected Service 
Ending Principal Interest Reserve Funds Debt Service Revenues Surplus Surplus Coverage 

06/0112016 552,000 -552,000 42,481 42,481 42,481 
06/0112017 552,000 -552,000 161,084 161,084 203,565 
06/0112018 552,000 552,000 422,127 -129,873 73.692 76.47228% 
06/01/2019 270,000 822,000 822,000 754,390 -67,610 6,081 91.77493% 
06/0112020 230,000 765,800 765,800 761,881 -3.919 2.162 99.48822% 
06/0112021 245,000 767,000 767,000 769,445 2,445 4,608 100.31884% 
06/01/2022 270,000 777,300 777,300 777,085 -215 4,392 99.97231% 
06/0112023 295,000 786,100 786.100 784,799 -1,301 3.092 99.83454% 
06/01/2024 320,000 793.400 793,400 792,590 -8lO 2,282 99.89789% 
06/01 /2025 345,000 799,200 799,200 800,457 1.257 3,539 100.15730% 
06/0112026 375,000 808,500 808.500 808,402 -98 3,441 99.98788% 
06/0lf2027 405,000 816,000 816.000 816,425 425 3,866 100.05209% 
06/0112028 435,000 821,700 821.700 824,527 2,827 6,693 100.34406% 
06/0112029 475,000 835,600 835,600 832,709 -2,89\ 3,802 99.65402% 
06/0112030 510,000 842,100 842,100 840,971 -1,129 2,673 99.86598% 
06/0 1/2031 545,000 846,500 846,500 849,315 2,815 5,488 100.33256% 
06/0112032 590,000 858,800 858,800 857,741 -1.059 4,429 99.87669% 
06/0112033 635,000 868,400 868,400 866,250 -2,150 2,279 99.75239% 
06/0112034 675,000 870,300 870,300 874,842 4,542 6,821 100.52192% 
06/0112035 730,000 884,800 884,800 883,519 -1,281 5.541 99.85525% 
06/0112036 785,000 896,000 896,000 892,282 -3,718 1,822 99.58500% 
06/0112037 835,000 898,900 898,900 901,130 2.230 4,052 100.24809% 
06/0112038 230,000 243,800 -898,900 -655,100 910,066 1,565.166 1.569,218 
06/0 112039 919,089 919,089 2,488,307 
06/0112040 928,201 928,201 3,416,508 
06/01/2041 937,403 937,403 4,353,911 
06/0112042 946,695 946.695 5,300,605 
06/01 /2043 956,078 956,078 6.256.683 
06/0112044 965,553 965553 7.222.237 

9,200,000 17,658,200 -2,002,900 15,655,300 22,877,537 7,222,237 

Oct 3,2014 12:25 pm Prepared by Piper Jaffray & Co, (TIF:BROCKWAY-APP) 

Page 86 of 132



Section ILG - TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

BOND SOwnON - WITH MANDATORY REDEMPTION Of BONDS 

Notes: 
AI! figures huein are preliminalY. subject to change. 
See Projection of Net Property Tax in~rcment for Projected Revenues. 
Capitalized rntercsl on the Bonds to June 1, 20 I 7. 
Reserve Fund prinicipal used to make rilla! payment on 1m: Bonds. 

Oct 3, 20 14 !2:25 pm PrepaJed by Piper Jaffray & Co. 

City ofMorganto\\n (West Virginia) 
Tax incmnent Revenue Bonds. Scries 2015 

(Redevelopment District No.4) 

Page 8 

(l1f:BROCKWA Y-A!>P) 

Page 87 of 132



Section I!.G - TIF Obligations PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE Page 9 

City of Morgantown Redevelopment District No.4 

CALCULATION OF PROJECTED NET PROPERTY TAX INCREMENT 

1.6660% ° 49,980 49,980 

1.6660% ° 174,930 174,930 
1.6660% 0 449,820 449,820 
1.6660% ° 799,680 799,680 

1.6660% 0 807,677 807,677 
1.6660% 0 815,754 815,754 

1.6660% 0 823,911 823,911 

1.6660% 0 832,150 832,150 (41,608) (5,743) 784,799 
1.6660% 0 840,472 840,472 (42,024) (5,858) 792,590 
1.6660% 0 848,876 848,876 (42,444) (5,975) 800,457 

0.8330% 1.6660% 0 857,365 857,365 (42,868) (6,095) 808,402 
51,977,122 0.8330% 1.6660% 0 865,939 865,939 (43,297) (6,217) 816,425 

° 52,496,893 52,496,893 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 874,598 874,598 (43,730) (6,341) 824,527 

° 53,021,862 53,021,862 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 883.344 883,344 (44,167) (6,468) 832,709 

° 53.552,081 53,552,081 0.8330% 1.6660"10 0 892,178 892,178 

° 54,087,601 54,087,601 0.8330% 1.6660% 0 901,099 901,099 

0 54,628,477 54,628,477 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 910,110 910,110 

° 55,174,762 55,174,762 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 919,212 919,212 

0 55,726,510 55,726,510 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 928,404 928,404 

° 56,283,775 56.283,775 0.8330% 1.6660% 0 937,688 937,688 

° 56,846,613 56,846,613 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 947,065 947,065 

0 57,415,079 57,415,079 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 956,535 956,535 

° 57,989,230 57,989,230 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 966,101 966,101 

° 58,569,122 58,569,122 0.8330% 1.6660% 0 975,762 975,762 

° 59,154,813 59,154,813 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 985,519 985,519 

0 59,746,361 59,746,361 0.8330% 1.6660% 0 995,374 995,374 (49,769) (8,203) 937,403 

° 100,573,041 100,573,041 1 ° 60,343,825 60,343,825 0.8330% 1.6660% 0 1,005,328 1,005,328 (50,266) (8,367) 946,695 

° 101,578,772 101,578,772 ° 60,947,263 60,947,263 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 1,015,381 1,015,381 (50,769) (8,534) 956,078 

0 102,594,560 102,594,560 ° 61,556,736 61,556,736 0.8330% 1.6660% ° 1,025,535 1,025,535 (51,277) (8,705) 965,553 

NOTES: 
(1) Projected increase in Taxable Assessed Values in TIF District (Assessed = 60"'{; of Appraised Values): (2) Current Tax Levy Rates for Tax Year 2014: 

Tax Year Appraised (S) Assessed (S) Class Description of Development Levy Class I Class /I Class IV 
Z015 5,000,000 3,000,000 IV Estimated Increase from existing development State 0.25 0.50 1.00 

2016 12,500,000 7,500,000 IV Private student housing project #1 City 12.50 25.00 50.00 
2017 27,500,000 16,500,000 IV Private student housing project 112 County 9.50 19.00 38.00 
2018 20,000,000 12,000,000 IV Private student housing project 113 School 19.40 ~ 77.60 
2018 15,000.000 9,000,000 IV Speculative project development Tot al 41.65 83.30 166.60 

80,000,000 48,000,000 (3) Estimated Property Tax Discount = 5.0% 
Annual Inflation Rate of Class IV values = 1.0"10 Beginning Tax Year 2019 Admin fees of the TlF District increase 2.0% per year. 

C': llm r.0JI. ! P' J ff 
, 'rn r"'Cp."n- lper a ray 

Printed on: 10/3/2014 

Page 88 of 132



DISCLAIMER 

Piper j affray is p1'Oviding the information contained hel'ein (01' discussion purposes only in 
antici/Jation of being engaged to serve as underwriter or placement agent on a future 
transaction and not as a financial advisor or municipal advisor. In providing the infonnation 
contained herein, Piper jaffray is not recommending an action to you and the information 
provided herein is not intended to be and should not be construed as a 'recommendation' or 
'advice' within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Piper 
jaffray is not acting as an advisor to you and does not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to 
Section 15B of the Exchange Act or under any state law to you with respect to the information 
and material contained in this communication. As an underwriter or placement agent, Piper 
jaffmy's primary role is to purchase or anange for the placement of securities with a view to 
distribution in an arm's-length commercial transaction, is acting for its own interests and has 
financial and other interests that differ from your interests. You should discuss any 
information and material contained in this communication with any and all internal or 
external advisors and experts that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or 
material. 

The information contained herein may include hypothetical interest rates or interest rate 
savings for a potential refunding. Interest rates used herein take into consideration conditions 
in today's market and other factual information such as credit rating, geographic location and 
market sector. Intel'est rates described herein should not be viewed as rates that Piper jaffray 
expects to achieve for you should we be selected to act as your underwriter or placement 
agent. Infonnation about interest rates and terms for SLGs is based on current PublicallY 
available infonnation and t1'easury 01' agency rates f01' open-market escrows are based on 
CU1Tent market interest rates for these types of credits and should not be seen as costs or rates 
that Piper jaffray could achieve for you should we be selected to act as your underwriter or 
placement agent. More pal,ticularized information and analysis may be p1'Ovided after you 
have engaged Piper j affray as an underwriter or placement agent or under certain other 
exceptions as describe in the Section 15B of the Exchange Act. 

GUWI,S FOR 
nm.JOUHNEY.' I PiperJaffray. 

Page 89 of 132



Attachm ent I: Mal) showing the ex is ting II SC~ alld conditio ns of the relll propCI"ty in th e 
project area or district. 

Attached hereto are a text description of the 1'1 f District boundaries and an aerial 
map show ing the currenl land usc of properties in the proposed Tl f District. 

Page 90 of 132



TA il A. 

TllXI DllSCl'iplioli ur the '1'1 F Dis l rid IJouml:lrics 

Thc proposed TIF District ineludes parce ls beginning at the intersection o f Willey Street and Oak 
Street. traveling south along Willey Street 10 Spruce Street, traveling along Spmce Street to 
Wal nut Street nnd Brockway Avenue, traveling along Brockway Avcnue to Pennsylvanin 
Avenue, traveling north to Richwood Avenue, traveling along Richwood to Un ion Street, 
traveling along Union Street to Battelle Street to Oak Street. 

Page 91 of 132



TABB. 

Aerial map displaying properties within and boundaries of TIF District 

Page 92 of 132



Page 93 of 132



Altacbmcnt2: A map showing proposed imlU'ovcmcnts and uses of the hllld in thc proj ect 
arca or district nnd thc boundurics of thc pmpert)' within the dcvelolllllcnt 
or rcdcvelopmcnt Jlroj cci IIrc:! 0'· dis trict whose incre ment will be used for 
this pl"Ojcct. 

The following are atl'aciled hereto: (i) an Jllap showing the boundaries of the 
proposed T1f District and (ii) the aerial map from Attac hmcnt 1 showing the 
preliminary proposed improvements and uses o f the land in the proposed TIF 
District, which prelim inmy proposed improvements and uses are subject to 
clillnge according to addit ional informat ion obtained at the time when such 
improvements and uses are being designed and/or constructed bUI which 
improvements and uses shol l be locll ted within or bellefi t the TIF Districl. 

Page 94 of 132



Page 95 of 132



Possible Areas Expected for 
Public Improvements 

- Infrastructure/Utility 

=-=-:J InfrastructurelUtility/Lighting 

Lighting 

• Public Properties Improvements 

Prepared by the Development Services Department (15 OCT 2014) 

Page 96 of 132



Attnchlllcnt 3 : A I'cso lutioll, ordcl' or ordinance lilld ing the lu'ojecl is not I'casolilibly 
CX I1CC!cd to oce" I' without the usc or tax incr'Clllcnt linltncillg, 

Anached hereto is a Reso lution adopted by the City Council on October 7, 201 4 
establishing the public hearin g date and other matters in connection with the TIF 
District Upon adoption, a Resol ution by the City Council approving and 
authorizing subm ission of the applicati on to the West Virginia Development 
Office and making the necessary and appropriate findings regarding the 
reasonableness of the project occurring without the IISC of tax incremerll 
financing will be attachcd here\'O, 

Page 97 of 132



AUaclullcill4: Co py of Ihe cCl'lificlltion by th e county IISSCSSO I' of Ihe base lI ~sesscd value of 
th e III'opcrly whose in crem enl will bc uscd ror Ihis lu'oj cct. 

' nlC base assessed value of the property as or July I, 2013, as certified by the 
Monongalia Cou llty Assessor has been requested and will be attached hereto 
once available. 

Page 98 of 132



Altllclimcn! 5: If !hc CII ITen! assessed va lu e is diffcrent f"om the !>nsc-nssessed value, It COI'Y 
of the cert ification by the co unty Itsscssor of tire Cllnent llssC$scd v:due of the 
p,'ol,erty in the developmen t or redevelolHll cnt Mea or dis trict tlmt will be 
used to hell' SIIPI,orl TIF obligations rOJ" this project, 

Thc curren! asses!>ed val ue of the properly with in the T1F District as of July I, 
20 14 is not yet available. 

Page 99 of 132



RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the City of Morgantown (the "City") is authorized by the West Virginia 
Tax Increment Financing Act, Chapter 7, Article 11 B of the Code of West Virginia 1931, as 
amended (the "Act"), to create development and redevelopment districts, cause project plans to 
be prepared, to approve project plans, issue tax increment financing obligations and to take such 
other actions necessary or desirable to facilitate the orderly development and economic stability 
ofthe City, all as more fully set forth in the Act; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to create and establish a redevelopment district to be 
known and designated as the "City of Morgantown Redevelopment District No.4" (the "TIF 
District"), and to approve a redevelopment project plan, specifically being the acquisition, 
construction and equipping of road and intersection improvements (including utility relocation, 
pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, land and right-of-way acquisition, and related 
infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and incidental costs and expenses relating to the 
construction and installation of such public infrastructure improvements and demolition projects, 
and other related public infrastructure, to be known and designated as "Willey-Spruce-Brockway 
Redevelopment Project Plan No.1" (the "Project Plan"), all in order to facilitate the issuance of 
tax increment financing obligations to finance the costs of planning, acquiring, constructing and 
equipping the Project Plan, being necessary public infrastructure improvements within the TIF 
District; and 

WHEREAS, the City, under and pursuant to the Act, desires to hold a public hearing at 
which interested parties be afforded a reasonable opportunity to express their views on the 
proposed creation of the TIF District, its proposed boundaries and the proposed Project Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. It is hereby found and detennined, subject to a public hearing and other required 
actions, that the City will consider for approval the Tax Increment Financial Application for the 
creation of the TIF District and approval of the Project Plan (the "Application") and, if approved, 
submit the Application to the West Virginia Development Office for consideration and obtain all 
other necessary approvals. 

2. The City hereby sets a public hearing regarding the Application for October 21, 
2014, at 7:00 p.m., prevailing time. 

3. The City hereby approves for publication, under and in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Act, that certain Notice of Public Hearing, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein by reference. 

4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

Page 100 of 132



Adopted this 7th day of October, 2014. 

APPROVED: 

By:~L~ 
~ttomey 

6570112 (19432.8) 

2 

CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

B~4£/ 
Manager 

fr~J By. :~ / J ~& 
/ : ayor 

I 

Page 101 of 132



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO BE PUBLISHED IN THE DOMINION POST 
ONCE A WEEK FOR TWO SUCCESSIVE WEEKS 

ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 10, AND 
FRIDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2014 

APPLICATION REGARDING CREATION OF 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4 

AND APPROVAL OF A PROJECT PLAN FOR 
WILLEY-SPRUCE-BROCKWAY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT NO.1 AND 

ISSUANCE OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS 

A public hearing will be held at a regular meeting of the City Council of Morgantown, 
Monongalia County, West Virginia (the "City Council"), on October 21, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall located at 389 Spruce Street, Morgantown, West Virginia 26505, 
and at such hearing any person interested may appear and present comments, protests, 
suggestions and otherwise express their views respecting an application regarding the creation 
of a development district to be designated as "City of Morgantown Redevelopment District No. 
4" (the "TlF District") in Morgantown, Monongalia County, West Virginia, and the financing of a 
project described in a Project Plan for the TIF District to be designated as "Spruce Street 
Redevelopment Project Plan No.1" (the "Project Plan"), A" comments, protests, suggestions 
and views shall be heard, and the City Council shall thereafter take such actions as it shall deem 
proper in the premises regarding the approval, pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 11B of the Code 
of West Virginia, 1931, as amended (the "Act") respecting the application regarding the 
creation of the TIF District and the approval of the Project Plan. Following is a brief summary of 
such matters. 

Creation of TIF District 

The proposed TIF District is comprised of approximately 99 acres of real property 
located beginning at Willey and Oak Street, traveling south along Willey Street to Spruce Street, 
traveling south to Walnut, traveling along Walnut Street to Brockway Avenue, traveling along 
Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania Avenue, traveling north to Richwood Avenue to Union 
Avenue, traveling along Union Avenue to Batte"e Avenue then to Oak Street, as depicted on 
the map below. 

[Insert Map) 

Page 102 of 132



Approval of Prolect Plan 

The City of Morgantown (the "City") proposes a Project Plan for the TIF District to 
develop/construct/install certain projects (the "TIF Projects") within the TIF District, which TIF 
Projects may be acquired and constructed in several phases. The TIF Projects Include the 
following public improvements: road, intersection, and public property improvements 
(including utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and 
right-of-way acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and 
incidental costs and expenses relating to the construction and installation of such public 
infrastructure improvements and demolition projects, and other related public infrastructure. 

Tax Increment Financing Obligations 

To finance the costs of the TIF Projects, the City Council proposes to Issue tax increment 
revenue bonds or other obligations (the "TIF Obligations") in an amount not to exceed 
$-,000,000, with maturities not to exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF 
District. Such obligations may be Issued from time to time in one or more series. Proceeds of 
the TIF Obligations are generally planned and expected to be used to (il finance the costs of the 
TIF Project, including architectural, engineering, legal and other professional fees and expenses; 
(II) fund reserves for the obligations; (iii) fund capitalized interest on the TIF Obligations; and 
(iv) pay costs of issuance of the TIF Obligations, including relating to the creation of the TIF 
District and preparation and approval of the Project Plan and related costs. A portion of the TIF 
Projects may also be paid directly from tax increment revenues. 

Further Information regarding the proposed TIF DistrIct, the Project Plan, the TIF 
Projects and the TIF Obligations are on file and available for inspection at the office of the City 
Clerk during regular business hours, located at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 389 Spruce 
Street, Morgantown, West Virginia. 

Dated: October 7,2014. 

6567004 (19432.8) 

By: lsI Linda Little 
City Clerk 

Page 103 of 132



~ 

~ '0 
C) I: 
OCU't: O a... I: .... m.- Ii: 

LIJ.LL.+, 
en CI,) +'.~ 
O(.)~O a.:;'e_ O a... LL. 

Q.Q)~ ~'" a... .... a. ." (.) _ 
I: >.

CI,) >< 

~~ 

Page 104 of 132



Attachmcnt 6: Vcdfi clltion and resul ts of the public hCI.riligs. 

The City wi ll hold a public hearing on the prol)osed TI F District untl proposed 
Project Plan on October 2 I, 20 14. The Affidav it of Publication of the Notice of 
Public Hearing and minutes frOIll the public hearings will be attached hereto. 

Page 105 of 132



Attachment 7: Analysis of costs to other communities or areas in West Virginia as a result 
of this development. 

There are no known costs to other communities or areas in West Virginia as a 
result ofthe proposed TIF District or proposed Project Plan. 

Page 106 of 132



Attachment 8: Other information including the effect on the economy that may be 
necessary or useful to determine whether the project is financially feasible. 

The deteriorating condition of certain parts of Morgantown has become a 
hindrance to the overall desire to live and work in certain areas of the City . The 
construction/installation of public property improvements (including utility 
relocation, sidewalks, curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and right-of-way 
acquisition, and related infrastructure) will serve to compliment the overall goals 
of the City. The real property within the TIF District and the citizens of the City 
will benefit from the elimination of and prevention of the spread of blighted and 
deteriorated areas, increasing employment opportunities and encouraging 
commerce, industry and citizens to remain and relocate to the area. In addition, 
the real property and citizens within the TIF District will benefit in the form of 
public improvements from funds to be generated and captured in TIF Fund over 
the 30-year life of the TIF District. 

The Project Plan will improve the quality of life of those living and working in 
the City. The infrastructure and streetscape improvements, combined with the 
anticipated new development within the proposed TIF District will attract new 
businesses and residents to the City and provide new employment opportunities. 

In late 20 J 1 and early 2012, the City worked with surrounding jurisdictions and 
government entities to pursue a combined planning effort. The result was the 
Comprehensive Plan provided in this attachment, which was adopted by the City 
Council on June 18,2013. 

Page 107 of 132



Atla clllll cnt 9: A mcmorandum of undcl'shlllding (MOU) bctwcen thc 
dcvcloller/ responsiblc p;u,tics a nd th e county o r municiplilit y nbo ut how th e 
COIII"Clil i\'c bidding p,'o cC.'1;S wil l he conducted, 

Not Applicable - The City is the applicant illld will handle the TIF Projects as 
nonnni public improvement projects ill uccordance with all applicable state, 
fedcral and loca l laws 

Page 108 of 132



Altachmcnt 10: A relocation plan for any displaced persons, businesses or organizations. 

No relocations for any displaced persons, businesses 01' organizations are 
anticipated at this time. 

Page 109 of 132



Attachment 11: Proposed changes to zoning ordinances, if any. 

None. 

Page 110 of 132



At .Ilchment 12: Appropriate cross-references to any master plan, Map, building codes, and 
municipal ordinance or county orders affected by the project. 

The City's Comprehensive Plan is provided in Attachment 8 hereto. There are 
no other cross-references at this time. 

Page 111 of 132



A1Illchlllcn t J3: Noticc of Ilubl ic Hcaring providcd to Wcst Vi rginia Devcloplllcnt Offi cc ami 
nil ot hc., loca l levying bodies within the boundaries of the proposed TIF 
Oistric!. Jr thc (l1'OllOscd TIF District is located wi thin the boundarics of a 
Illullici lla lity, the County must obtain th e prim' wriucn conscnt of the 
1111111 icilmlity. 

Attached hcrcto are copies of all correspondence with all applicable public 
ent ities, includi ng without limitation, the Monongalia County Commission. the 
Monongalia County Board of Educat ion (the "Board of Education") and the West 
Virg inia Development Office, inc luding a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing 
prov ided each such patty in accordance with the TI F Act. 

Page 112 of 132



OFFICE OF CITY MANAGER 

lIhr [ity of morgantown 
389 SPRUCE STREET 

MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 26505 
(304) 284-7405 TOO (304) 284-7512 

October 8,2014 

YJJ:\ E-MAIL ANDFIRST(:.LASS..MAIL 

Lawrence W. Battolo, President 
County Commission of Monongalia County 
243 High Street, Room 202, COLlrthouse 
Morgantown, WV 26505 

Dear Mr. Bartolo: 

Enclosed is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing relating to proposed tax increment 
financing for the proposed redevelopment district to be known as the "City of Morgantown 
Redevelopment District No.4" (the "TTF District"). The City of Morgantown will be publishing 
the attached Notice of Public Hearing (the "Notice") in connection with a public hearing regarding 
a Tax Increment Financing Application (the "Application") for the creation of the TTF District and 
approval of a project plan setting forth the intended uses of the tax increment financing. As set 
out in the Notice, the public hearing will be held on Tuesday, October 21,2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

The application materials will be available for review at the Office of the Clerk of the City 
of Morgantown on or after October 9, 2014. The Application contains information regarding the 
proposed TIF District, including a map of the proposed boundades and the project plan. Please 
feel free to contact me regarding any questions that you may have related to the Notice, the 
proposed TIF District or the AppJicatjon. 

6~
((AdY yours, J 

r. . '/./1 . ' . / A ~ _-.:.- -. ~/ .... , . /' , .. )//.5:; ...... ,,';; ,. ~-
...... "·u!vin G. Kelly ,.;/ -

Assistant City Manager 

Enclosures 

Page 113 of 132



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO BE PUBLISHED IN THE DOMINION POST 

ONCE A WEEK FOR TWO SUCCESSIVE WEEKS 
ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 10, AND 

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 17,2014 

APPLICATION REGARDING CREATION OF 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4 

AND APPROVAL OF 
WILLEY-SPRUCE-BROCKWAY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT PLAN NO.1 AND 

ISSUANCE OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS 

A public hearing will be held at a regular meeting of the City Council of Morgantown, 
Monongalia County, West Virginia (the "City Council"), on October 21, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall located at 389 Spruce Street, Morgantown, West Virginia 26505, 
and at such hearing any person interested may appear and present comments, protests, 
suggestions and otherwise express their views respecting an application regarding the creation 
of a development district to be designated as "City of Morgantown Redevelopment District No. 
4" (the "TIF District") in Morgantown, Monongalia County, West Virginia, and the financing of 
the TIF Projects (as hereinafter defined) as described in a Project Plan for the TIF District to be 
designated as "Willey-Spruce-Brockway Redevelopment Project Plan No. 1/1 (the "Project 
Plan"). All comments, protests, suggestions and views shall be heard, and the City Council shall 
thereafter take such actions as it shall deem proper in the premises regarding the approval, 
pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 11B of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended (the "Act/l) 
respecting the application regarding the creation of the TIF District and the approval of the 
Project Plan. Following is a brief summary of such matters. 

Creation of TIF District 

The proposed TIF District is comprised of approximately 99 acres of real property 
beginning at the intersection of Willey Street and Oak Street, traveling south along Willey Street 
to Spruce Street, traveling along Spruce Street to Walnut Street to Brockway Avenue, traveling 
along Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania Avenue, traveling north to Richwood Avenue, traveling 
along Richwood to Union Street, traveling along Union Street to Battelle Street to Oak Street, as 
depicted on the map below. 

[Insert Map] 

Page 114 of 132



Page 115 of 132



Approval of Project Plan 

The City of Morgantown (the "City") proposes a Project Plan for the TIF District to 
develop/construct/install certain projects (the "TIF Projects") within the TIF District, which TIF 
Projects may be acquired and constructed in several phases. The TIF Projects include the 
following public improvements: road, intersection and public property improvements (including 
utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and right-of
way acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and incidental 
costs and expenses relating to the construction and installation of such public infrastructure 
improvements and demolition projects, and other related public infrastructure. 

Tax Increment Financing Obligations 

To finance the costs of the TIF Projects, the City Council proposes to issue tax increment 
revenue bonds or other obligations (the "TIF Obligations") in an amount not to exceed 
$12,000,000, with maturities not to exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF 
District. The TIF Obligations may be issued from time to time in one or more series. Proceeds 
of the TIF Obligations are generally planned and expected to be used to (i) finance the costs of 
the T/F Project, including architectural, engineering, legal and other professional fees and 
expenses; (ii) fund reserves for the obligations; (iii) fund capitalized interest on the TIF 
Obligations; and (iv) pay costs of issuance of the TIF Obligations, including relating to the 
creation of the T/F District and preparation and approval of the Project Plan and related costs. 
A portion ofthe TIF Projects may also be paid directly from tax increment revenues. 

Further information regarding the proposed T/F District, the Project Plan, the TIF 
Projects and the TIF Obligations are on file and available for inspection at the office of the City 
Clerk during regular business hours, located at the County Clerk's office in City Hall, 389 Spruce 
Street, Morgantown, West Virginia. 

Dated: October 7,2014. 

6567004 (19432.8) 

By: /5/ linda little 
City Clerk 

Page 116 of 132



1Irhe [tty of morgantown 

OFFICE OF CITY MANAGER 

389 SPRUCE STREET 
MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 26505 

(304) 284-7405 TOO (304) 284-7512 

October 8, 2014 

VIA E:MAIl.~ t.1'JD FIRS'!, CLASS MA11 

Dr. Frank Devono, Superintendent 
Monongalia County Board of Education 
13 South High Street 
Morgantown, West Virginia 26501 

Dcar Dr. Devono: 

Enclosed is a copy of the Notice of Public Bearing relating to proposed tax increment 
financing for the proposed redevelopment district to be known as the "City of Morgantown 
Redevelopment District No.4" (the "TTF Dislric!"). The City of Morgantown will be publishing 
the attached Notice of Public Hearing (the "Notice") in connection with a public hearing regarding 
a Tax Increment Financing Application (the "Application") for the creation ofthe TlF District and 
approval of a project plan setting f01th the intended uses of the tax increment financing. As set 
out in the Notice, the public hearing will be held on Tuesday, October 2.1,2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

The application materials will be available for review at the Office of the Clerk of the City 
of Morgantown on or after October 9, 2014. The Application contains information regarding the 
proposed TIF District, including a map of the proposed boundaries and the project plan. Please 
n~d frce to contact me regarding any qllestions that you may have related to the Notice, the 
proposed TIF District or the Application. 

Enclosures 

Page 117 of 132



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO BE PUBLISHED IN THE DOMINION POST 

ONCE A WEEK FOR TWO SUCCESSIVE WEEKS 
ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER lD, AND 

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2014 

APPLICATION REGARDING CREATION OF 

THE CITV OF MORGANTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4 

AND APPROVAL OF 

WILLEY-SPRUCE-BROCKWAY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT PLAN NO.1 AND 

ISSUANCE OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS 

A public hearing will be held at a regular meeting of the City Council of Morgantown, 
Monongalia County, West Virginia (the ItCity Council"), on October 21, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall located at 389 Spruce Street, Morgantown, West Virginia 26505, 
and at such hearing any person interested may appear and present comments, protests, 
suggestions and otherwise express their views respecting an application regarding the creation 
of a development district to be designated as ItCity of Morgantown Redevelopment District No. 
4" (the ItTIF District") in Morgantown, Monongalia County, West Virginia, and the financing of 
the TIF Projects (as hereinafter defined) as described in a Project Plan for the TIF District to be 
designated as ItWilley-Spruce-Brockway Redevelopment Project Plan No.1" (the Itproject 
Plan"). All comments, protests, suggestions and views shall be heard, and the City Council shall 
thereafter take such actions as it shall deem proper in the premises regarding the approval, 
pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 11B of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended (the ItAct") 
respecting the application regarding the creation of the TlF District and the approval of the 
Project Plan. Following is a brief summary of such matters. 

Creation of TIF District 

The proposed TIF District is comprised of approximately 99 acres of real property 
beginning at the intersection of Willey Street and Oak Street, traveling south along Willey Street 
to Spruce Street, traveling along Spruce Street to Walnut Street to Brockway Avenue, traveling 
along Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania Avenue, traveling north to Richwood Avenue, traveling 
along Richwood to Union Street, traveling along Union Street to Battelle Street to Oak Street, as 
depicted on the map below. 

[Insert Map] 

Page 118 of 132



f , .. ' • • 

t i.q . 

~C) 
ra r::: 3:._ 
~ (,) 
(,) r::: 
Ora_ 

O "r:::(,) 
III .- 'i: W.u._ en (1) _ .~ 

O(,)~O a..:::l e _ 
0 .. u. 

c.(1)c::: "" .. Ia.. v, (,) _ 
r::: 

~
(1) >< = ra .- I-
~ 

Page 119 of 132



Approval of Project Plan 

The City of Morgantown (the "City") proposes a Project Plan for the TIF District to 
develop/construct/install certain projects (the "TIF Projects") within the TIF District, which TIF 
Projects may be acquired and constructed in several phases. The TIF Projects include the 
following public improvements: road, intersection and public property improvements (including 
utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and right-of
way acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and incidental 
costs and expenses relating to the construction and installation of such public infrastructure 
improvements and demolition projects, and other related public infrastructure. 

Tax Increment Financing Obligations 

To finance the costs of the TIF Projects, the City Council proposes to issue tax increment 
revenue bonds or other obligations (the "TIF Obligations") in an amount not to exceed 
$12,000,000, with maturities not to exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF 
District. The TIF Obligations may be issued from time to time in one or more series. Proceeds 
of the TIF Obligations are generally planned and expected to be used to (i) finance the costs of 
the TIF Project, including architectural, engineering, legal and other professional fees and 
expenses; (ii) fund reserves for the obligations; (iii) fund capitalized interest on the TIF 
Obligations; and (iv) pay costs of issuance of the TIF Obligations, including relating to the 
creation of the TIF District and preparation and approval of the Project Plan and related costs. 
A portion of the TIF Projects may also be paid directly from tax increment revenues. 

Further information regarding the proposed TIF District, the Project Plan, the TIF 
Projects and the TIF Obligations are on file and available for inspection at the office of the City 
Clerk during regular business hours, located at the County Clerk's office in City Hall, 389 Spruce 
Street, Morgantown, West Virginia. 

Dated: October 7,2014. 

6567004 (19432.8) 

By: /s/ Linda Little 
City Clerk 

Page 120 of 132



OFFICE OF CITY MANAGER 

Keith Burdette, Executive Director 
West Virginia Development Office 
1900 Kanawha Boulevard, East 
Capito] Complex 
Building 6, Room 525 
Charleston, West Virginia 25305 

Dear Mr. Burdette: 

~hf Q:itn of morgantown 
389 SPRUCE STREET 

MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 26505 
(304) 284-7405 TOD (304) 284-7512 

October 8, 2014 

Enclosed is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing relating to proposed tax increment 
financing for the proposed redevelopment district to be known as the "City of Morgantown 
Redevelopment District No.4" (the "TIF District"). The City of Morgantown will be publishing 
the attached Notice of Public Hearing (the "Notice") in connection with a public hearing regarding 
a Tax Increment financing Appllcation (the "Application") for the creation of the TIF District and 
approval of a project plan setting forth the intended uses of the tax increment financing. As set 
out in the Notice, the public hearing will be held on Tuesday, October 21, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

The application materials will be available for review at the Office of the Clerk of the City 
of Morgantown on or after October 9, 2014. The Application contains information regarding the 
proposed TIF District, including a map of the proposed boundaries and the project plan. Please 
feci frec to contact me regarding any questions that you may have related to the Notice, the 
proposed TIF District or the Application. 

cc: Mr. Todd Hooker 
Enclosures 

2t,C>Y'),,1'I1Y yours, 

I~/ -- / -:;",,/. ~; 4: /:.'/. , _ 7;7 rt:;;;Z~=-==.:.-
Calvin G. Kelly -' ;;;- ~ -
Assistant City Manager 

Page 121 of 132



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO BE PUBLISHED IN THE DOMINION POST 

ONCE A WEEK FOR TWO SUCCESSIVE WEEKS 
ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 10, AND 

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2014 

APPLICATION REGARDING CREATION OF 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN REDEVelOPMENT DISTRICT NO.4 

AND APPROVAL OF 
WlllEY-SPRUCE-BROCKWAY REDEVelOPMENT PROJECT PLAN NO.1 AND 

ISSUANCE OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS 

A public hearing will be held at a regular meeting of the City Council of Morgantown, 
Monongalia County, West Virginia (the /lCity Council"L on October 21, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall located at 389 Spruce Street, Morgantown, West Virginia 26505, 
and at such hearing any person interested may appear and present comments, protests, 
suggestions and otherwise express their views respecting an application regarding the creation 
of a development district to be designated as IICity of Morgantown Redevelopment District No. 
4" (the "TIF District") in Morgantown, Monongalia County, West Virginia, and the financing of 
the TIF Projects (as hereinafter defined) as described in a Project Plan for the TIF District to be 
designated as "Willey-Spruce-Brockway Redevelopment Project Plan No.1" (the "Project 
Plan"). All comments, protests, suggestions and views shall be heard, and the City Council shall 
thereafter take such actions as it shall deem proper in the premises regarding the approval, 
pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 11B of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended (the "Act") 
respecting the application regarding the creation of the TIF District and the approval of the 
Project Plan. Following is a brief summary of such matters. 

Creation ofTIF District 

The proposed TIF District is comprised of approximately 99 acres of real property 
beginning at the intersection of Willey Street and Oak Street, traveling south along Willey Street 
to Spruce Street, traveling along Spruce Street to Walnut Street to Brockway Avenue, traveling 
along Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania Avenue, traveling north to Richwood Avenue, traveling 
along Richwood to Union Street, traveling along Union Street to Battelle Street to Oak Street, as 
depicted on the map below. 

[Insert Map] 

Page 122 of 132



~C) 
3: .= 
~ U 
U I:: 
Ons_ 

C L. I:: U m.- .~ 
W.LJ._ 
CI) _rn a Q) I:: .-
a. uQ)c 

:::SEa L. LJ. ..., a.Q)_ 
u..CI)L.1-a. U _ 

I:: 
~
Q) >< 
- ns 
~ 

~ 
co 

"0 
oc(/) 
UJ:J(]) 
C/)0t; 
O~ro 
c..ULO 
OE"': 
o:::.!!1~ 
c..o 

LL 
i= 

1: 
Q) 

E 
1: 

'" D-
Q) 

o 

Page 123 of 132



Approval of Project Plan 

The City of Morgantown (the "City") proposes a Project Plan for the TIF District to 
develop/construct/install certain projects (the ((TIF Projects") within the TIF District, which TIF 
Projects may be acquired and constructed in several phases. The TIF Projects include the 
following public improvements: road, intersection and public property improvements (including 
utility relocation, pedestrian ways (sidewalks), curbs, lighting, landscaping, land and right-of
way acquisition, and related infrastructure), demolition and site preparation, and incidental 
costs and expenses relating to the construction and installation of such public infrastructure 
improvements and demolition projects, and other related public infrastructure. 

Tax Increment Financing Obligations 

To finance the costs of the TIF Projects, the City Council proposes to issue tax increment 
revenue bonds or other obligations (the "TIF Obligations") in an amount not to exceed 
$12,000,000, with maturities not to exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF 
District. The TIF Obligations may be issued from time to time in one or more series. Proceeds 
of the TIF Obligations are generally planned and expected to be used to (i) finance the costs of 
the TIF Project, including architectural, engineering, legal and other professional fees and 
expenses; (ii) fund reserves for the obligations; (iii) fund capitalized interest on the TIF 
Obligations; and (iv) pay costs of issuance of the TIF Obligations, including relating to the 
creation of the TIF District and preparation and approval of the Project Plan and related costs. 
A portion of the TIF Projects may also be paid directly from tax increment revenues. 

Further information regarding the proposed TIF District, the Project Plan, the TIF 
Projects and the TIF Obligations are on file and available for inspection at the office of the City 
Clerk during regular business hours, located at the County Clerk's office in City Hall, 389 Spruce 
Street, Morgantown, West Virginia. 

Dated: October 7,2014. 

6567004 (19432.8) 

By: /s/ Linda Little 
City Clerk 

Page 124 of 132



AIIHchmcnt 14: Th~ Monongalia County Board of Education, the County Commission of 
Monongalia County 01' the West Virginia Development Offi.ce may request 
furtber information, provide guidance or make other formal requests. Any 
soch communications are included with this application. 

Any future correspondence from the Monongalia County Board of Education the 
ounty Comm ission of Monongalia County or Ule We t Virginia Devel pment 

Of/'ice regarding Ihis applicati n r the formation of the TTF Di trict wi ll be 
provided in this attachment. 

Page 125 of 132



Attachment 15: H the projed was proposed by an entity other than tbe county or 
muni(!ipality submitting this application, the following, as applicable, must 
also be submitted: (a) Certificate of Existence; (b) Certificate of Workers' 
Compensation Insurance Coverage; (c) Certificate of Good Standing from 
State Tax Department; and (d) a certificate from the sheriff of the county in 
which the district is located regarding loca) property tax status. 

Not Applicable - The TIF Projects are being proposed by the City. 

Page 126 of 132



Attachment 16: Analysis showing the fiscal impact on each local levying body. The analysis 
will consider the costs incurred by the local levying bodies and how those 
costs will be offset/funded. Possible costs include the effect on schools, 
public services, utilities, etc. 

Preliminary Cost/Benefit Analysis 

The property tax increment from current levies from the State, the City, the County and the Board of 
Education will be deposited in the TIF Fund. The benefits and costs on levying bodies as a result of 
current and planned development within the TlF District are highlighted in the table below. 

Benefits and Costs State City COllnty Hoard of 
Education 

Benefits: 
Excess Levy No No No Yes 
BID taxes No Yes No No 
Jobs I Economic Development Yes Yes Yes Yes 
Excess Funds (I) Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Costs: 
Water / Sewer I Storm water (2) No Yes No No 
Roads Yes Yes No No 
Fire / Police No Yes No No 
Trash No Yes No No 
Education No No No No 

(I) Thel e will be a benefit to the levying bodies to the extent Excess Funds are available in the TIF Fund and if 
sueh funds are paid to the appropriate levying body. The tax increment will also be distributed to the 
levying bodies 1lJlon the termination oflhe TIF District. 

(2) Cost related to water, sewer or stormwater not paid from the TIF Fund are anticipated to be paid from other 
funds available to the City 01' the MOIgantoll'n Utility Board. 

School Aid Formula 

The Board of Education current levy is set, statewide, by the Legislature and for tax year 2014 is: Class 
11: 38.80 cents/$l 00; and Class III & IV: 77.60 cents/$100. Public schools also are funded by the school 
aid formula that allows a certain dollar amount per pupil. For purposes of the local share calculation in 
the school aid formula, the aggregate incremental assessed value is not included. As the school boards 
are not charged for the tax increment, the state aid to schools formula makes up the difference. Therefore, 
the Project Plan does not have a negative effect on funding that is made available to the Board of 
Bdllealion. 

Estimated Increase in Tax Collections from Current Levy Rates after Expiration of the TIF District 

Much of the development in the TIF District is expected to have a life of over 30 years. In addition, the 
TlF Obligations are projected to be paid off by June 1, 2038. Consequently, the three main property tax 
levies (Current School, City and County) wiJI revert back to these levying bodies upon the termination of 
the TIF District. Tax collections for fiscal year 2038, when compared to taxes collected for fiscal year 
20 I 5, represent an increase of $270,319 in taxes paid to the City, $203,550 to the County, and $423,887 
to the Board of Education. 

Page 127 of 132



'" 

Estimated Increase in Tax Collections from Excess Levy Rates 

The Board of Education has an excess levy as follows (cents per $100 valuation, fiscal year ending June 
30,2015): 

The estimated increase in excess levies paid to the Board of Education based on the estimated taxable 
incremental property value in the TrF District as provided in Section II.B(l) and Section II.O is as 
follows: 

Estimated Increase in Excess Levy Tax CoIIections* 

Tax Year Tax Uue Uale Hoarll of Ellucation 
(A rit I) ($) 

2015 2016 14,369 
2016 2017 62,690 
2017 2018 169,115 
2018 2019 304,592 
2019 2020 307,584 
2020 2021 310,606 
2021 2022 313,657 
2022 2023 316,737 
2023 2024 319,847 
2024 2025 322,987 
2025 2026 326,157 
2026 2027 329,358 
2027 2028 332,589 
2028 2029 335,852 
2029 2030 339,146 
2030 2031 342,471 
2031 2032 345,828 
2032 2033 349,218 
2033 2034 352,640 
2034 2035 356,095 
2035 2036 359,583 
2036 2037 363,105 
2037 2038 366,660 
2038 2039 370,249 
2039 2040 373,873 
2040 2041 377,531 
2041 2042 381,225 
2042 2043 384,953 
2043 2044 388,717 

*Based on the "CALCULATION OF PROJECTED NET PROPERTY TAX INCREMENT" allalysis attached to Section 11.0 -
Tax Increment Financing Obligations. 

Page 128 of 132



Atlacilmcnl 17: A Icttc,· from II hond cou nsel nnd/or financial undcnvdtc,· slllting thnt thc 
prollllscd p,·oj cct' could sUJlJlort tax increment financing bonds, or other 
obligations, lind the terms 1111(1 co nditions of such offering. 

Attached hereto is a letter prepared by Piper Jaffray & Co., as Investment 
Banker/Placement Agent to the C ity. Bond counsel has not yet becn engaged by 
the City, but upon engagement of bond counsel, a lettcr from bond counsel will 
be llunched to hereto. 

Page 129 of 132



PiperJaffra~ 
Since 1895. Member SIPC and NYSE 

October 6, 2014 

Mr. Jeff Mikorski, City Manager 
City of Morgantown 
389 Spruce Street, Third Floor 
Morgantown, WV 26505 

Dear Mr. Mikorski: 

West Virginia Public Finance 
405 Capitol Street, Suite 613 

Charleston, West Virginia 25301 
Tel: 304.343.7101 or 304.343.7102 
Fax: 304.551.0228 OJ' 304.551.0229 

As investment banker for the proposed issuance of tax increment financing obligations "WiJley-Spruce
Brockway Redevelopment Project plan No.1" (the "Project Plan") to be located within the "City of 
Morgantown Redevelopment District No.4" (the "TIF District"), we have prepared a preliminary 
bond structure and a preliminary tax increment analysis for the proposed issuance of approximately 
$9,200,000 in tax increment refunding and revenue bonds (the "TIF Obligations"), as provided in the 
TIF Application and planned to be filed with the City Clerk. 

Based on projected development in the TIF District and a number of other assumptions, including but 
not limited to those listed below, the preliminary projection of net property tax increment of the TIF 
District is sufficient to support the proposed issuance of TIF Obligations. 

• Issuer - City of Morgantown, West Virginia 

• Par Amount of TIF Obligations - Approximately $9,200,000 of TIF Obligations 

• Delivery Date - On or about June 1, 2015 

• Maturity - The TIF Obligations were structured with a final maturity on June 1, 2044 
or approximately 30 years from the creation of the TIF District. To the extent 
projected Excess Funds (as defined in Section II.G of the TIF Application) are used to 
redeem outstanding bonds, it is anticipated that the TIF Obligations could be paid off 
as early as on June 1, 2038; 

• Interest Rates - The preliminary interest rate on the TIF Obligations is 6.00% (subject 
to market conditions at the time of sale of the TIF Obligations); 

• Uses of Funds - Proceeds of the TIF Obligations include (i) approximately $7,000,000 
to fund the proposed Project, (ii) approximately $709,600 to fund a Reserve Fund for 
the TIF Obligations, (iii) approximately $1,104,000 to pay capitalized interest on the 
TIF Obligations to approximately June 1, 2017, and (iv) estimated cost of issuance of 
$386,400; 

• Security - The TIF Obligations are assumed to have a senior lien on the projected net 
property tax increment of the TIF District, which are deposited into the tax increment 
fund (the "TIF Fund") for the TIF District; 

Page 130 of 132



PiperJaffray;, 
Since 1895. Member SIPC and NYSE 

West Virginia Public Finance 
405 Capitol Street, Suite 613 

Charleston, West Virginia 25301 
Tel: 304.343.7101 01' 304.343.7102 
Fax: 304.551.0228 01' 304.551.0229 

• Redemption - The TIF Obligations are planned to be issued in $5,000 denominations 
and subject to mandatory extraordinary redemption and payment in increments of 
$5,000 from Excess Funds. Based on a private placement of the TIF Obligations, the 
TIF Obligations may be callable at any time after the date of issuance (as shown in the 
preliminary bond structure and tax increment analysis provided in the TIF 
Application). If the TIF Obligations are publicly marketed, the TIF Obligations would 
likely be subject to optional redemption approximately 10 years from the date of 
issuance of the TIF Obligations. 

• Projection of Net Property Tax Increment - The projected increase in assessed values 
of real and personal property of the TIF District is based on a number of assumptions, 
including a development estimates provided by the City and an annual inflation rate of 
1.0% on Class III real properties beginning Tax Year 2019. Please see Section n.B.1 
and Section H.G of the TIF Application for details. 

Sincerel y, 

M::1 ric L. Prezioso 
Senior Vice President 
Manager of West Virginia Public Finance 

Joseph E. Nassif 
Senior Vice President 
Public Finance Investment Banking 

Page 131 of 132



PiperJaffra~ 
Since 1895. Member SIPC and NYSE 

DISCLAIMER 

West Virginia Public Finance 
405 Capitol Street, Suite 613 

Charleston, West Virginia 25301 
Tel: 304.343.7101 or 304.343.7102 
Fax: 304.551.0228 or 304.551.0229 

Piper JajJray is providing the information contained herein for discussion purposes only in 
anticipation of being engaged to serve as underwriter or placement agent on afuture transaction 
and not as a financial advisor or municipal advisor. In providing the information contained 
herein, Piper Jaffray is not recommending an action to you and the information provided herein 
is not intended to be and should not be construed as a 'recommendation' or 'advice' within the 
meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Piper Jaffray is not acting as an 
advisor to you and does not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of the Exchange Act or 
under any state law to you with respect to the information and material contained in this 
communication. As an underwriter or placement agent, Piper Jaffray's primary role is to 
purchase or arrange for the placement of securities with a view to distribution in an arm's-length 
commercial transaction, is acting for its own interests and has financial and other interests that 
differ from your interests. You should discuss any information and material contained in this 
communication with any and all internal or external advisors and experts that you deem 
appropriate before acting on this information or material. 

The information contained herein may include hypothetical interest rates or interest rate savings 
jar a potential refunding. Interest rates used herein take into consideration conditions in today's 
market and other factual il?formation such as credit rating, geographic location and market 
sector. Interest rates described herein should not be viewed as rates that Piper JajJray expects to 
achieve for you should we be selected to act as your underwriter or placement agent. 
Information about interest rates and terms for SLGs is based on current publically available 
information and treasury or agency rates for open-market escrows are based on current market 
interest rates for these types of credits and should not be seen as costs or rates that Piper JajJray 
could achieve for you should we be selected to act as your underwriter or placement agent. More 
particularized iriformation and analysis may be provided after you have engaged Piper JajJray 
as an underwriter or placement agent or under certain other exceptions as describe in the 
Section 15B of the Exchange Act. 

Page 132 of 132


	Agenda
	Minutes
	City Manager's Report
	Boards and Commissions
	Housing Advisory Commission Ord.
	Merkol Airport Lease Ord.
	925.03 Amendment Ord.
	923.06 and 923.13 Amendment Ord.
	U.S.19 Bicyle Lane Ord.
	Res. Submitting TIF Application



